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     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
Part I - Financial Information 
 
  Item 1 - Financial Statements 
 
   CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
      (Unaudited) 
 
         Quarter Ended 
           June 30, 
In Millions (except per share amounts)                        2000           1999 
 
                                                                 
Revenues: 
   Product sales                                        $     5,370    $     4,597 
   Service sales                                              1,501          1,387 
   Financing revenues and other income, net                      90             57 
             6,961          6,041 
Costs and expenses: 
   Cost of products sold                                      4,057          3,465 
   Cost of services sold                                        930            882 
   Research and development                                     309            306 
   Selling, general and administrative                          787            693 
   Interest                                                      93             57 
             6,176          5,403 
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 
   and minority interests                                       785            638 
Income taxes                                                    252            196 
Minority interests                                               24             25 
Income from continuing operations                               509            417 
Discontinued operation: 
   Income from operations of discontinued UT Automotive 
    unit (net of applicable income tax provision of $13)          -             10 
   Gain on sale of UT Automotive subsidiary (net of 
    applicable income tax provision of $112)                      -            650 
Net income                                              $       509    $     1,077 
 
Earnings per share of Common Stock: 
  Basic: 
   Continuing operations                                $      1.07    $       .89 
   Discontinued operation                                         -            .02 
   Gain on sale of discontinued operation                         -           1.42 
   Net earnings                                         $      1.07    $      2.33 
  Diluted: 
   Continuing operations                                $      1.00    $       .83 
   Discontinued operation                                         -            .02 
   Gain on sale of discontinued operation                         -           1.30 
   Net earnings                                         $      1.00    $      2.15 
 
Dividends per share of Common Stock:                    $       .20    $       .18 
 
Average number of shares outstanding: 
   Basic                                                        470            459 
   Diluted                                                      508            501 
 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
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     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
 
   CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
        (Unaudited) 
 
              Six Months Ended 
           June 30, 
In Millions (except per share amounts)                        2000           1999 
 
                                                                 
Revenues: 
   Product sales                                        $    10,194    $     8,577 
   Service sales                                              2,984          2,789 
   Financing revenues and other income, net                     173            117 
            13,351         11,483 
Costs and expenses: 
   Cost of products sold                                      7,774          6,575 
   Cost of services sold                                      1,841          1,749 
   Research and development                                     623            580 
   Selling, general and administrative                        1,568          1,394 
   Interest                                                     179            112 
            11,985         10,410 
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 
   and minority interests                                     1,366          1,073 
Income taxes                                                    429            332 
Minority interests                                               51             46 
Income from continuing operations                               886            695 
Discontinued operation: 
   Income from operations of discontinued UT Automotive 
    unit (net of applicable income tax provision of $28)          -             40 
   Gain on sale of UT Automotive subsidiary (net of 
    applicable income tax provision of $112)                      -            650 
Net income                                              $       886    $     1,385 
 
Earnings per share of Common Stock: 
  Basic: 
   Continuing operations                                $      1.85    $      1.49 
   Discontinued operation                                         -            .09 
   Gain on sale of discontinued operation                         -           1.43 
   Net earnings                                         $      1.85    $      3.01 
  Diluted: 
   Continuing operations                                $      1.74    $      1.39 
   Discontinued operation                                         -            .08 
   Gain on sale of discontinued operation                         -           1.31 
   Net earnings                                         $      1.74    $      2.78 
 
Dividends per share of Common Stock:                    $       .40    $       .36 
 
Average number of shares outstanding: 
   Basic                                                        471            455 
   Diluted                                                      510            497 
 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
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     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
   CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
 
 
           June 30,     December 31, 
             2000           1999 
In Millions                                                (Unaudited) 
                                                                 
    Assets 
 
Cash and cash equivalents                               $       813    $       957 
Accounts receivable, net                                      4,382          4,337 
Inventories and contracts in progress, net                    3,599          3,504 
Future income tax benefits                                    1,375          1,563 
Other current assets                                            244            266 
   Total Current Assets                                      10,413         10,627 
Fixed assets                                                 10,120         10,455 
   Less:  Accumulated depreciation                            5,885          5,995 
             4,235          4,460 
Goodwill                                                      6,121          5,641 
Other assets                                                  3,547          3,638 
 
  Total Assets                                          $    24,316    $    24,366 
 
 
    Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity 
 
Short-term borrowings                                   $       953    $       902 
Accounts payable                                              2,130          1,957 
Accrued liabilities                                           5,650          6,023 
Long-term debt currently due                                    227            333 
   Total Current Liabilities                                  8,960          9,215 
 
Long-term debt                                                3,242          3,086 
Future pension and postretirement benefit obligations         1,628          1,601 
Other long-term liabilities                                   2,916          2,898 
 
Series A ESOP Convertible Preferred Stock                       783            808 
ESOP deferred compensation                                     (346)          (359) 
        437            449 
Shareowners' Equity: 
   Common Stock                                               4,367          4,227 
   Treasury Stock                                            (3,695)        (3,182) 
   Retained earnings                                          7,088          6,463 
   Accumulated other non-shareowners' changes in equity        (627)          (391) 
             7,133          7,117 
 
  Total Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity             $    24,316    $    24,366 
 
 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
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     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
  CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
      (Unaudited) 
 
              Six Months Ended 
           June 30, 
In Millions                                                    2000           1999 
 
                                                                  
Operating Activities: 
   Income from continuing operations                     $       886    $       695 
   Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing 
    operations to net cash flows provided by 
    operating activities: 
     Depreciation and amortization                               429            380 
     Deferred income tax provision                               108             64 
    Change in: 
     Accounts receivable                                        (170)          (365) 
     Inventories and contracts in progress                       (66)           105 
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities                   (113)            96 
     Other current assets                                         38            (34) 
    Other, net                                                    35             62 
     Net cash flows provided by operating 
       activities                                              1,147          1,003 
Investing Activities: 
   Capital expenditures                                         (326)          (292) 
   Investments in businesses                                    (442)        (2,069) 
   Dispositions of businesses                                      -             43 
   Increase in customer financing assets, net                    (14)          (130) 
   Other, net                                                     60             90 
     Net cash flows used in investing activities                (722)        (2,358) 
Financing Activities: 
   Issuance of long-term debt                                    214            400 
   Repayment of long-term debt                                  (146)          (199) 
   Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings, net              48           (335) 
   Dividends paid on Common Stock                               (189)          (162) 
   Repurchase of Common Stock                                   (522)          (267) 
   Other, net                                                     31            126 
     Net cash flows used in financing activities                (564)          (437) 
 
     Net cash flows provided by discontinued 
       operation                                                   -          2,159 
 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on Cash and 
  cash equivalents                                                (5)           (32) 
 
     Net (decrease) increase in Cash and cash 
       equivalents                                              (144)           335 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                     957            550 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period                 $       813    $       885 
 
 
 
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
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      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
  NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
        (Unaudited) 
 
  The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements  at June 30, 2000 and for  the 
quarters and six-month periods ended June  30, 2000 and 1999 are unaudited,  but 
in the opinion of management include all adjustments, consisting only of  normal 
recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results for  the 
interim periods. The results reported in these condensed consolidated  financial 
statements should not necessarily be taken as indicative of results that may  be 
expected for the entire year.  The financial information included herein  should 
be  read  in  conjunction  with  the  financial  statements  and  notes  in  the 
Corporation's Annual Report incorporated by reference in Form 10-K for  calendar 
year 1999. 
 
Non-Shareowners' Changes in Equity 
 
  Non-shareowners' changes  in equity  include all  changes in  equity during  a 
period except  changes  resulting  from  investments  by  and  distributions  to 
shareowners.   A summary of  the non-shareowners' changes in equity is  provided 
below. 
 
       Quarter Ended               Six Months Ended 
           June 30,                     June 30, 
       2000       1999               2000      1999 
 
                                                                                    
   Net Income                                        $     509    $   1,077        $    886    $   1,385 
   Foreign currency translation, net                       (33)           7             (62)         (71) 
   Unrealized holding loss on 
      marketable equity securities, net                   (100)           -            (174)           - 
           $     376    $   1,084        $    650    $   1,314 
 
 
 
Investments in Businesses 
 
  During the first six months of 2000, the Corporation invested $442 million  in 
businesses, including Pratt &  Whitney's second quarter  purchase of the  engine 
maintenance center of Braathens ASA and Carrier's first quarter purchase of  the 
commercial refrigeration business of Electrolux AB.   The assets and liabilities 
of the acquired businesses accounted for under the purchase method were recorded 
at their fair values at the  dates of acquisition.   The excess of the  purchase 
price over  the  estimated fair  values  of the  net  assets acquired  has  been 
recorded as goodwill and is being amortized over its estimated useful life.  The 
increase in goodwill in the six-month period of 2000 is associated with goodwill 
recorded on  2000  acquisitions as  well  as  certain adjustments  made  in  the 
finalization of purchase price allocations for  1999 acquisitions.  The  results 
of operations of  all acquired businesses  have been included  in the  Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of  Operations beginning on  the effective  date of  each 
acquisition.   The pro forma results, assuming these acquisitions had been  made 
at the beginning of  the year, would not  be materially different from  reported 
results. 
       5 
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     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
Inventories and Contracts in Progress 
 
         June 30,          December 31, 
In Millions                                                        2000               1999 
                                                                        
 
Inventories consist of the following: 
  Raw material                                               $       638        $      702 
  Work-in-process                                                  1,004             1,158 
  Finished goods                                                   2,183             1,871 
  Contracts in progress                                            1,688             1,561 
           5,513             5,292 
Less: 
  Progress payments, secured by lien, on U.S. 
    Government contracts                                            (145)              (87) 
  Billings on contracts in progress                               (1,769)           (1,701) 
            $     3,599        $    3,504 
 
 
 
Restructuring 
 
   During 1999,  the Corporation's  operating segments  initiated a  variety  of 
actions  aimed  at   further  strengthening  their   future  profitability   and 
competitive position.    Those  actions  focused  principally  on  rationalizing 
manufacturing processes  and  improving  the  overall  level  of  organizational 
efficiency, including the removal of  management layers.  Restructuring  charges 
accrued in 1999 were $842 million before income taxes and minority interests and 
are expected to  result in  net reductions  of approximately  15,000 salary  and 
hourly employees and approximately 8 million square feet of facilities. 
 
   The 1999  accrued  costs  were recorded  across  each  of  the  Corporation's 
operating segments as follows: 
 
In Millions 
 
Otis                                                      $  178 
Carrier                                                      182 
Pratt & Whitney                                              345 
Flight Systems                                               131 
Other                                                          6 
         $  842 
       6 
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      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
  The following  table summarizes  the accrued  costs associated  with the  1999 
restructuring actions by type and related activity through June 30, 2000: 
 
 
     Accrued                      Accrued Exit & 
           Severance                         Lease          Accrued Site 
          and Related    Asset Write-     Termination      Restoration & 
In Millions                              Costs           downs           Costs          Other Costs      Total 
                                                                                          
 
1999 Charges: 
  Staff reductions                      $  433          $     -         $     -           $     -       $  433 
  Facility closures                        149              160              44                56          409 
Total accrued charges                      582              160              44                56          842 
Adjustments                                 (5)               -               -                 -           (5)
1999 Adjusted                              577              160              44                56          837 
Utilized to date: 
  Cash                                    (276)               -             (10)              (13)        (299)
  Non-cash                                 (64)            (160)              -                 -         (224)
Balance at 
  June 30, 2000                         $  237          $     -         $    34           $    43       $  314 
 
 
  The 1999  accrued costs  were recorded  in cost  of sales  (87%) and  selling, 
general and administrative expenses (13%) and related to: 
 
 . Workforce reductions of  approximately 15,000 employees, primarily at Pratt  & 
  Whitney  (5,200  employees),   Otis  (4,000  employees)  and  Carrier   (3,200 
  employees). 
 
 . Plant closings that  will result in the  reduction of approximately 8  million 
  square feet  of facilities,  primarily at Pratt  & Whitney  (3 million  square 
  feet) and Carrier (2.9 million  square feet), and charges associated with  the 
  write-down of property,  plant and equipment to  fair value, where fair  value 
  is based on  appraised value, primarily at Pratt  & Whitney ($70 million)  and 
  Carrier ($41 million). 
 
  As of  June 30, 2000,  workforce reductions of  approximately 9,600  employees 
were completed and approximately 3.1 million  square feet were eliminated.   The 
remaining  workforce  reductions   and  plant   closings  are   planned  to   be 
substantially completed by December of this year. 
 
  In  the first  six months  of 2000,  the Corporation  incurred and  recognized 
costs of $102 million  associated with the restructuring  actions that were  not 
accruable when the actions were initiated. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
  There  has   been  no  significant  change   in  the  Corporation's   material 
contingencies during 2000. Summarized below, however, are the matters previously 
described in Notes 1 and 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in 
the Corporation's Annual  Report, contained in  the Corporation's Annual  Report 
incorporated by reference in Form 10-K for calendar year 1999. 
 
Environmental 
 
  The  Corporation's  operations are  subject  to  environmental  regulation  by 
federal, state  and  local  authorities in  the  United  States  and  regulatory 
authorities with jurisdiction over its foreign operations. 
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      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
  Environmental investigatory, remediation, operating and maintenance costs  are 
accrued when it is probable  that a liability has  been incurred and the  amount 
can be reasonably estimated.   The most  likely cost to  be incurred is  accrued 
based on  an  evaluation of  currently  available  facts with  respect  to  each 
individual site, including existing technology, current laws and regulations and 
prior remediation experience.   Where no amount within  a range of estimates  is 
more likely,  the minimum  is  accrued.   For  sites with  multiple  responsible 
parties, the  Corporation  considers  its  likely  proportionate  share  of  the 
anticipated remediation costs and  the ability of the  other parties to  fulfill 
their obligations in establishing a provision for those costs.  Liabilities with 
fixed or reliably determinable future cash payments are discounted. 
 
  The  Corporation maintains  property  insurance  with a  number  of  insurance 
companies.  Litigation is continuing against one of the Corporation's historical 
property insurers seeking coverage for  environmental costs incurred at  certain 
facilities.  The litigation  is expected to last  several years.   Environmental 
liabilities are not reduced by potential insurance reimbursements. 
 
  As  discussed   above,  the  Corporation   has  accrued  for   the  costs   of 
environmental remediation activities and periodically reassesses these  amounts. 
Management believes that the likelihood of incurring losses materially in excess 
of amounts accrued is remote. 
 
U.S. Government 
 
  The Corporation is now, and believes that, in light of the current  government 
contracting environment,  it will  be  the subject  of  one or  more  government 
investigations.  If  the Corporation or  one of its  business units was  charged 
with wrongdoing as a result of  any of these investigations, the Corporation  or 
one of its business units could be suspended from bidding on or receiving awards 
of new government  contracts pending the  completion of legal  proceedings.   If 
convicted or found liable, the Corporation could be fined and debarred from  new 
government contracting for a  period generally not to  exceed three years.   Any 
contracts found to be tainted by fraud could be voided by the Government. 
 
  The  Corporation's contracts  with the  U.S. Government  are also  subject  to 
audits.   Like many  defense contractors,  the  Corporation has  received  audit 
reports which recommend that certain contract prices should be reduced to comply 
with various  government  regulations.   Some  of these  audit  reports  involve 
substantial amounts.  The Corporation has made voluntary refunds in those  cases 
it believes appropriate. 
 
Other 
 
  The Corporation extends  performance and operating cost guarantees beyond  its 
normal warranty  and  service policies  for  extended  periods on  some  of  its 
products, particularly  commercial  aircraft  engines.    Liability  under  such 
guarantees is contingent upon  future product performance  and durability.   The 
Corporation has  accrued its  estimated liability  that may  result under  these 
guarantees. 
 
  The Corporation also has other commitments and contingent liabilities  related 
to legal proceedings and matters arising out of the normal course of business. 
 
  The  Corporation has  accrued  for environmental  investigatory,  remediation, 
operating and maintenance costs, performance guarantees and other litigation and 
claims based on management's estimate of the probable outcome of these  matters. 
While it is  possible that  the outcome  of these  matters may  differ from  the 
recorded liability, management  believes that resolution  of these matters  will 
not have a material impact on  the Corporation's financial position, results  of 
operations or cash flows. 
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Earnings Per Share 
 
            Quarter Ended        Six Months Ended 
              June 30,               June 30, 
 
In Millions (except per share amounts)                      2000       1999       2000        1999 
                                                                                 
 
Income from continuing operations                        $    509   $    417   $    886     $    695 
Less:  ESOP Stock dividends                                    (8)        (8)       (16)         (16) 
Basic earnings from continuing operations                     501        409        870          679 
ESOP Stock adjustment                                           7          7         14           14 
Diluted earnings from continuing operations             $     508  $     416   $    884     $    693 
 
Income from discontinued operation, net of tax          $       -  $      10   $      -     $     40 
Gain on sale of discontinued 
 operation, net of tax                                          -        650          -          650 
       $       -  $     660   $      -     $    690 
 
Net income                                              $     509  $   1,077   $    886     $  1,385 
Less:  ESOP Stock dividends                                    (8)        (8)       (16)         (16) 
Basic earnings                                                501      1,069        870        1,369 
ESOP Stock adjustment                                           7          7         14           14 
Diluted earnings                                        $     508  $   1,076   $    884     $  1,383 
 
Average shares: 
 Basic                                                        470        459        471          455 
 Stock awards                                                  11         15         12           15 
 ESOP Stock                                                    27         27         27           27 
 Diluted                                                      508        501        510          497 
 
Earnings per share of Common Stock: 
 Basic: 
  Continuing operations                                 $    1.07  $     .89   $   1.85     $   1.49 
  Discontinued operation                                        -        .02          -          .09 
  Gain on sale of discontinued operation                        -       1.42          -         1.43 
  Net earnings                                          $    1.07  $    2.33   $   1.85     $   3.01 
 Diluted: 
  Continuing operations                                 $    1.00  $     .83   $   1.74     $   1.39 
  Discontinued operation                                        -        .02          -          .08 
  Gain on sale of discontinued operation                        -       1.30          -         1.31 
  Net earnings                                          $    1.00  $    2.15   $   1.74     $   2.78 
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  With respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial information  of 
United Technologies Corporation  for the  quarters and  six-month periods  ended 
June 30, 2000  and 1999,  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  ("PricewaterhouseCoopers") 
reported  that  they  have  applied   limited  procedures  in  accordance   with 
professional standards  for  a  review of  such  information.    However,  their 
separate report dated July 19, 2000,  appearing below, states that they did  not 
audit  and  they  do  not  express  an  opinion  on  that  unaudited   condensed 
consolidated financial information.  PricewaterhouseCoopers has not carried  out 
any significant or  additional audit tests  beyond those which  would have  been 
necessary if their  report had not  been included.   Accordingly, the degree  of 
reliance on their report  on such information should  be restricted in light  of 
the limited nature of the review procedures applied.  PricewaterhouseCoopers  is 
not subject to the liability provisions of  section 11 of the Securities Act  of 
1933 ("the  Act")  for their  report  on the  unaudited  condensed  consolidated 
financial information because that  report is not  a "report" or  a "part" of  a 
registration statement prepared  or certified  by PricewaterhouseCoopers  within 
the meaning of sections 7 and 11 of the Act. 
 
    REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
To the Shareowners of 
  United Technologies Corporation 
 
  We  have  reviewed  the  accompanying  condensed  consolidated  statement   of 
operations of United Technologies Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries  for 
the quarters  and  six months  ended  June 30,  2000,  and 1999,  the  condensed 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2000  and 
1999, and the condensed consolidated  balance sheet as of  June 30, 2000.   This 
financial information is the responsibility of the company's management. 
 
  We  conducted our  review  in accordance  with  standards established  by  the 
American Institute  of  Certified  Public Accountants.    A  review  of  interim 
financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures  to 
financial data and  making inquiries of  persons responsible  for financial  and 
accounting matters.  It is substantially  less in scope than an audit  conducted 
in accordance with auditing standards generally  accepted in the United  States, 
the objective of which is the  expression of an opinion regarding the  financial 
statements taken as a whole.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
  Based on  our review,  we are  not aware  of any  material modifications  that 
should be  made  to the  accompanying  financial information  for  it to  be  in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
  We  previously  audited  in  accordance  with  auditing  standards   generally 
accepted in the United States, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 
1999, and  the related  consolidated statements  of  operations, of  changes  in 
shareowners' equity and  of cash flows  for the year  then ended (not  presented 
herein), and in our report dated  January 19, 2000, we expressed an  unqualified 
opinion on  those  consolidated  financial statements.    In  our  opinion,  the 
information set forth in the  accompanying condensed consolidated balance  sheet 
as of December 31, 1999, is fairly  stated in all material respects in  relation 
to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived. 
 
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Hartford, Connecticut 
July 19, 2000 
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  Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and 
     Financial Position 
 
 
        BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT 
 
  The  Corporation's operations  are classified  into four  operating  segments. 
Carrier and  Otis serve  customers in  the commercial  property and  residential 
housing industries.   Pratt  & Whitney  and the  Flight Systems  segment,  which 
includes Sikorsky Aircraft and  Hamilton Sundstrand, primarily serve  commercial 
and government customers in the aerospace industry. 
 
  For  discussion  of  the Corporation's  business  environment,  refer  to  the 
discussions of "Business Environment,"  "Commercial Aerospace," and  "Government 
Business" in the Management's Discussion and  Analysis of Results of  Operations 
and Financial  Position  in  the Corporation's  Annual  Report  incorporated  by 
reference in  Form 10-K  for calendar  year 1999.   Significant  changes in  the 
Corporation's business  environment during  the first  six  months of  2000  are 
discussed below. 
 
  As worldwide businesses,  the Corporation's operations are affected by  global 
and regional economic factors. During the first six months of 2000, the  decline 
in the  European currencies had a negative impact on the Corporation's  consoli- 
dated  results.  However,  in  general,   the  diversity  of  the  Corporation's 
businesses  and  global  market presence have helped, and will continue to help, 
limit  the  impact  of any  one industry or the economy of any single country on 
the consolidated results. 
 
  The Sikorsky-Boeing joint  venture that is under  contract with the U.S.  Army 
to develop prototypes, flight test and field test Comanche helicopters  obtained 
approval to begin  the Engineering  and Manufacturing  Development (EMD)  phase. 
The EMD phase will lead to the manufacture of 13 additional aircraft during 2004 
and 2005 and continued development testing. 
 
  There have  been no other  significant changes in  the Corporation's  business 
environment during the first six months of 2000. 
 
     RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 
  Consolidated revenues increased $920 million (15%) to $6.96 billion and  $1.87 
billion (16%) to $13.35  billion in the second  quarter and six-month period  of 
2000 compared to the same periods in 1999.  Excluding the unfavorable impact  of 
foreign currency translation, consolidated revenues increased 17% and 18% in the 
second quarter and six-month period of  2000.  The increases were due  primarily 
to  the  impact  of  acquisitions,  including  the  acquisition  of   Sundstrand 
Corporation ("Sundstrand") late  in the  second quarter  of 1999,  International 
Comfort Products in the third quarter  of 1999, LG Industrial Systems'  Building 
Facilities Group  ("LG  Elevator")  in  the  fourth  quarter  of  1999  and  the 
refrigeration business of Electrolux  AB during the first  quarter of 2000,  and 
growth in the ongoing businesses of Otis and Carrier.  The revenue increase  was 
partially offset by a decline at Pratt & Whitney. 
 
  Financing  revenues and  other  income, net,  increased  $33 million  and  $56 
million in the  second quarter and  six-month period of  2000 compared to  1999. 
The increases  reflect  interest  income on  prior  period  income  tax  credits 
resulting from a second quarter 2000 industry related court decision from  which 
the Corporation expects to  benefit, partially offset  by costs associated  with 
certain Corporate e-business initiatives. 
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  Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 27.4% in the second quarter of  2000 
and 1999. The ratio increased two tenths of a percent to 27.0% in the  six-month 
period of 2000 compared to the  same period of 1999 principally associated  with 
the acquisition of Sundstrand. 
 
  Research and  development spending increased $3  million (1%) and $43  million 
(7%) in  the second  quarter and  six-month  period of  2000 compared  to  1999, 
principally due  to  the inclusion  of  Sundstrand's operations  in  the  Flight 
Systems segment for  the entire  second quarter  and six-month  period of  2000, 
partially offset by a decrease at  Pratt & Whitney.   As a percentage of  sales, 
research and development was 4.5% and  4.7% in the second quarter and  six-month 
period of 2000 as compared to  5.1% in the same periods  of 1999.  Research  and 
development is expected to remain at approximately 5% of sales in 2000. 
 
  Selling, general and  administrative expenses increased $94 million (14%)  and 
$174 million (12%) in the second  quarter and six-month period of 2000  compared 
to 1999.  The  increases were primarily at  Hamilton Sundstrand and Carrier  and 
relate to acquisitions, including Sundstrand, International Comfort Products and 
the refrigeration business of  Electrolux AB, partially  offset by decreases  at 
Pratt & Whitney from benefits associated  with previous cost reduction  actions. 
As a percent of sales, these expenses were 11.5% and 11.9% in the second quarter 
and six-month period of 2000 as compared to 11.6% and 12.3% in the same  periods 
of 1999. 
 
  Interest expense  increased $36  million (63%) and  $67 million  (60%) in  the 
second quarter and six-month period of 2000 compared to 1999.  The increases are 
associated with $1.7 billion of debt issued in 1999 to finance acquisitions  and 
repurchase the Corporation's Common Stock. 
 
  Excluding  second  quarter  2000  discrete  tax  items  discussed  below,  the 
effective income tax rate  for the six-month period  of 2000 decreased to  30.5% 
from 30.9% for the same period of 1999.  The Corporation has continued to  lower 
its effective income tax rate by implementing tax reduction strategies. 
 
  The effective income tax rate for  the six-month period of 2000 including  all 
tax items was 31.4%.   The increase in effective tax rate relates to the  impact 
of the second  quarter 2000  enactment of Connecticut  tax law  changes and  the 
related revaluation of the Corporation's state deferred tax asset.  In addition, 
as discussed above,  the Corporation expects  to benefit from  a second  quarter 
2000 industry related court decision and  as a result has recognized income  tax 
credits for prior periods and related interest income. 
 
Restructuring and Other Costs 
 
  As described in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial  Statements, 
the Corporation's  operating segments  initiated a  variety of  actions in  1999 
aimed at  further  strengthening  their  future  profitability  and  competitive 
position. The  1999 actions  totaled $1,120  million,  before income  taxes  and 
minority interest, and included accrued  restructuring charges of $842  million, 
related charges of  $141 million  that were  not accruable  when initiated,  and 
charges associated with product development and aircraft systems integration and 
non-product purchasing. 
 
  In February 2000,  a Federal District Court  issued an injunction relative  to 
certain restructuring actions planned  by Pratt & Whitney  that would move  work 
from Connecticut to Arkansas, Texas and Oklahoma.  Pratt & Whitney appealed this 
injunction and expects a decision later in  2000.  The accruable portion of  the 
cost of  these actions  was recorded  during  1999.   The Corporation  does  not 
believe  that  resolution   of  the  litigation   will  materially  impact   the 
Corporation's restructuring program. 
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  In the  current year, the  Corporation expects to  have pre-tax cash  outflows 
related to the 1999 programs of approximately $750 million, using cash generated 
from operations, including up to $300 million of additional costs that were  not 
accruable when the actions were initiated.  Through June 30, 2000, approximately 
$102 million of additional  costs have been incurred  and recognized.  The  1999 
restructuring and other actions taken by the Corporation are expected to  result 
in savings that  should offset  the additional  costs expected  to be  incurred, 
resulting in a modest benefit in 2000.  Recurring savings, associated  primarily 
with net reduction in workforce and facility closures, are expected to  increase 
over a three-year period to approximately $750 million pre-tax annually. 
 
Segment Review 
 
  Revenues, operating profits and operating profit margins of the  Corporation's 
principal operating segments for the quarters  and six-month periods ended  June 
30, 2000 and 1999 are as follows: 
 
 
 
In Millions of Dollars                                                           Operating 
        Revenues       Operating Profits    Profit Margin 
Quarter Ended June 30,                  2000     1999       2000     1999      2000     1999 
 
                                                                       
 
  Otis                                $ 1,534  $ 1,379    $   194  $   161     12.6%    11.7% 
  Carrier                               2,522    2,029        313      234     12.4%    11.5% 
  Pratt & Whitney                       1,790    1,985        285      284     15.9%    14.3% 
  Flight Systems                        1,201      764        140       81     11.7%    10.6% 
  Total segment                         7,047    6,157        932      760     13.2%    12.3% 
  Eliminations and other                  (86)    (116)         3       (5) 
  General corporate expenses                -        -        (57)     (60) 
  Consolidated                        $ 6,961  $ 6,041        878      695 
  Interest expense                                            (93)     (57) 
  Consolidated income from continuing 
   operations before income taxes and 
   minority interests                                     $   785  $   638 
 
 
 
 
           Operating 
         Revenues       Operating Profits    Profit Margin 
Six Months Ended June 30,               2000       1999      2000      1999      2000     1999 
 
                                                                         
  Otis                               $  3,077   $  2,742    $  386    $  316      12.5%    11.5% 
  Carrier                               4,368      3,539       436       325      10.0%     9.2% 
  Pratt & Whitney                       3,614      4,004       567       564      15.7%    14.1% 
  Flight Systems                        2,458      1,370       278       121      11.3%     8.8% 
  Total segment                        13,517     11,655     1,667     1,326      12.3%    11.4% 
  Eliminations and other                 (166)      (172)       (8)      (16) 
  General corporate expenses                -          -      (114)     (125) 
  Consolidated                       $ 13,351   $ 11,483     1,545     1,185 
  Interest expense                                            (179)     (112) 
  Consolidated income from continuing 
   operations before income taxes and 
   minority interests                                       $ 1,366  $ 1,073 
 
 
 
  Otis  revenues increased  11% and  12%  in the  second quarter  and  six-month 
period of 2000  compared to 1999.  Excluding the unfavorable  impact of  foreign 
currency translation, revenues increased 16% in the second quarter and six-month 
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period of  2000 compared  to 1999.   The  increases reflect  the impact  of  the 
acquisition of LG Elevator and growth in  all regions, with the majority of  the 
growth in  North American  and European  regions.   Weaker  European  currencies 
generated most of the unfavorable foreign currency translation impact. 
 
  Otis operating profits  increased $33 million (20%)  and $70 million (22%)  in 
the second quarter and six-month period of 2000 compared to 1999. Excluding  the 
unfavorable impact of  foreign currency  translation, operating  profits in  the 
second quarter and six-month period increased 29% and 31%, reflecting the impact 
of the acquisition of LG Elevator and increases in all regions. 
 
  Carrier revenues  increased 24% and  23% in the  second quarter and  six-month 
period of 2000 compared  to 1999.  Excluding  the unfavorable impact of  foreign 
currency translation,  revenues  in  the second  quarter  and  six-month  period 
increased 27% and 26%,  with improvement in all  operations.   The  improvements 
were led by increases in North American and Refrigeration operations,  including 
the impact of the acquisition of International Comfort Products and  the refrig- 
eration business of Electrolux AB. 
 
  Carrier operating profits increased  $79 million (34%) and $111 million  (34%) 
in the second quarter and six-month period of 2000 compared to 1999.   Excluding 
the unfavorable  impact  of  foreign  currency  translation,  operating  profits 
increased 36% in  the second quarter  and six-month  period, largely  reflecting 
expansion in  margin and  volume  in the  North  American HVAC  and  residential 
operations.    The  increases   include  the  impact   of  the  acquisition   of 
International Comfort Products and improvements associated with a new factory in 
Charlotte, North Carolina. 
 
  Pratt &  Whitney revenues decreased  10% in the  second quarter and  six-month 
period of 2000 compared to 1999, primarily due to lower commercial and  military 
engine shipments associated with the anticipated decline in the aerospace cycle. 
The decrease  was  partially  offset  by  growth  at  Pratt  &  Whitney  Canada. 
Management believes  the aerospace  cycle  has reached  a  point where  Pratt  & 
Whitney's revenues will  be about level  with the second  half of  1999 for  the 
remainder of the year. 
 
  Pratt & Whitney operating profits increased  $1 million and $3 million in  the 
second quarter and six-month period of 2000 compared to 1999.  The increases are 
largely related  to  lower  research  and  development  costs  and  improvements 
resulting  from  continued  cost  reductions,  partially  offset  by   decreases 
associated with lower commercial and military  engine shipments.  The  six-month 
increase also reflects improvements at Pratt & Whitney Canada. 
 
  Flight Systems revenues increased $437 million (57%) and $1,088 million  (79%) 
in the  second quarter  and six-month  period of  2000 compared  to 1999.    The 
increase in revenues reflects the inclusion  of Sundstrand's operations for  the 
entire second quarter and six-month period of 2000 and delivery of several  high 
value helicopters at Sikorsky. 
 
  Flight Systems operating profits increased $59 million (73%) and $157  million 
(130%) in the  second quarter  and six-month period  of 2000  compared to  1999, 
primarily due to  the inclusion of  Sundstrand's results for  the entire  second 
quarter and six-month period of 2000.  The second quarter increase was partially 
offset by a decline at Sikorsky. 
 
     FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
  Management  assesses the  Corporation's  liquidity  in terms  of  its  overall 
ability to  generate  cash  to fund  its  operating  and  investing  activities. 
Significant factors  affecting  the  management  of  liquidity  are  cash  flows 
generated  from  operating  activities,  capital  expenditures,  investments  in 
businesses, customer financing requirements, Common Stock repurchases,  adequate 
bank lines of credit and financial flexibility to attract long-term capital with 
satisfactory terms. 
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  Set forth below are selected key cash flow data: 
 
             Six Months Ended 
          June 30, 
In Millions                                                  2000          1999 
                                                                
Operating Activities 
  Net cash flows provided by operating activities      $     1,147   $     1,003 
 
Investing Activities 
  Capital expenditures                                        (326)         (292) 
  Investments in businesses                                   (442)       (2,069) 
  Increase in customer financing assets, net                   (14)         (130) 
 
Financing Activities 
  Repurchase of Common Stock                                  (522)         (267) 
  Increase  in total debt                                      101           336 
  Increase in net debt                                         245             1 
 
Net cash flows provided by discontinued operation                -         2,159 
 
 
  Cash flows  provided by  operating activities  increased $144  million in  the 
first six  months  of  2000  compared  to  the  corresponding  period  in  1999, 
associated primarily with improved operating performance. 
 
  Cash flows used in investing activities decreased $1,636 million in the  first 
six months of 2000 compared to the first six months in 1999 primarily due to the 
second quarter 1999  purchase of Sundstrand.  Cash spending  for investments  in 
businesses for the first  six months of 2000  include the first quarter  Carrier 
acquisition of  the  refrigeration business  of  Electrolux AB  and  the  second 
quarter Pratt  &  Whitney  acquisition  of  the  engine  maintenance  center  of 
Braathens ASA.  Total  cash  spending  for investments in businesses in  2000 is 
expected to be in the range of $1 billion. 
 
  Customer financing activity decreased to a  net use of cash of $14 million  in 
the first six months of 2000 from the $130 million net use of cash in the  first 
six months of 1999,  primarily due to decreased  customer demand for  financing. 
While the Corporation expects  that 2000 customer financing  activity will be  a 
net use of  funds, actual funding  is subject to  usage under existing  customer 
financing commitments during the remainder of the year.  The Corporation's total 
commitments to finance or arrange financing  of commercial aircraft and  related 
equipment at June  30, 2000  were approximately  $1.0 billion  compared to  $1.3 
billion for 1999. 
 
  The Corporation  repurchased $522 million  of Common  Stock, representing  9.4 
million shares, in the first six months of 2000 under previously announced share 
repurchase programs. The share repurchase program  continues to be a use of  the 
Corporation's cash flows and has more than offset the dilutive effect  resulting 
from the issuance of stock under stock-based employee benefit programs.  At June 
30, 2000,  the  Corporation was  authorized  to repurchase  an  additional  15.6 
million shares. 
 
  As  described  in  the  Corporation's  1999  Annual  Report,  incorporated  by 
reference in Form 10-K,   the Corporation  sold its UT  Automotive Unit to  Lear 
Corporation on May 4,  1999.  The discontinued  UT Automotive operation and  its 
subsequent sale provided $2,159 million of cash in 1999. 
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  Other selected financial data are as follows: 
 
 
       June 30,    December 31,   June 30, 
In Millions of Dollars               2000          1999         1999 
                                                    
Cash and cash equivalents        $      813    $     957    $      885 
Total debt                            4,422        4,321         2,509 
Net debt (total debt less cash)       3,609        3,364         1,624 
Shareowners' equity                   7,133        7,117         7,317 
Debt-to-total capitalization             38%          38%           26% 
Net debt-to-total capitalization         34%          32%           18% 
 
 
  The Corporation manages its worldwide cash requirements considering  available 
funds among the many subsidiaries through which it conducts its business and the 
cost effectiveness with which those funds  can be accessed. The repatriation  of 
cash balances from certain of the Corporation's subsidiaries could have  adverse 
tax consequences; however, those balances are generally available without  legal 
restrictions to fund ordinary business operations.  The Corporation has and will 
continue to transfer  cash from those  subsidiaries to the  parent and to  other 
international subsidiaries when it is cost effective to do so. 
 
  Management  believes that  its  existing  cash position  and  other  available 
sources of liquidity are sufficient to meet current and anticipated requirements 
for the  foreseeable future.   Although  uncertainties in  acquisition  spending 
could cause modest variations at times, management anticipates that the level of 
debt-to-capital will remain generally consistent with recent debt levels. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
  In June  1998, the Financial  Accounting Standards Board  issued Statement  of 
Financial Accounting Standards No.  133, "Accounting for Derivative  Instruments 
and Hedging Activities," which,  as amended, is  currently effective January  1, 
2001 for the Corporation.   Management believes adoption  of this standard  will 
not have a material impact on the Corporation's consolidated financial position, 
results of operations or cash flows. 
 
 
  Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 
 
  There has been no significant  change in the Corporation's exposure to  market 
risk during the first six months of  2000.  For discussion of the  Corporation's 
exposure to  market  risk,  refer  to  Item  7A,  Quantitative  and  Qualitative 
Disclosures about  Market Risk,  contained in  the Corporation's  Annual  Report 
incorporated by reference in Form 10-K for the calendar year 1999. 
 
      16 



  17 
 
     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
      AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
 
       CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS 
 
  This report  on Form 10-Q contains  statements which, to  the extent they  are 
not statements  of  historical  or  present  fact,  constitute  "forward-looking 
statements" under  the securities  laws.   From time  to time,  oral or  written 
forward-looking statements may also be included  in other materials released  to 
the  public.    These  forward-looking   statements  are  intended  to   provide 
Management's  current  expectations  or  plans  for  the  future  operating  and 
financial  performance  of  the  Corporation,  based  on  assumptions  currently 
believed to be valid.  Forward-looking  statements can be identified by the  use 
of  words  such  as  "believe,"  "expect,"  "plans,"  "strategy,"   "prospects," 
"estimate," "project,"  "anticipate"  and  other words  of  similar  meaning  in 
connection with  a  discussion of  future  operating or  financial  performance. 
These include, among others, statements relating to: 
 
 . Future earnings and other measurements of financial performance 
 . Future cash flow and uses of cash 
 . The effect of economic downturns or growth in particular regions 
 . The effect of changes in the level of activity in particular industries or 
  markets 
 . The scope, nature or impact of acquisition activity 
 . Product developments and new business opportunities 
 . Restructuring costs and cost reduction efforts 
 . The outcome of contingencies. 
 
  All forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may  cause 
actual results  to differ  materially from  those expressed  or implied  in  the 
forward-looking statements.    This  Report  on  Form  10-Q  includes  important 
information as to risk factors in the "Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements" under the heading "Contingent Liabilities" and in the section titled 
"Management's Discussion and  Analysis of  Results of  Operations and  Financial 
Position" under the headings "Business Environment" and "Restructuring and Other 
Costs."  The Corporation's Annual  Report  on Form  10-K  for 1999 also includes 
important information as to  risk factors  in the  "Business" section  under the 
headings "Description of Business by Operating Segment," "Other Matters Relating 
to the Corporation's Business as a Whole" and "Legal Proceedings."    Additional 
important information as to risk factors  is included in the Corporation's  1999 
Annual Report to Shareowners in the section titled "Management's Discussion  and 
Analysis of Results  of Operations and  Financial Position"  under the  headings 
"Business Environment"  and "Restructuring  and Other  Costs."   For  additional 
information identifying factors that may cause actual results to vary materially 
from those  stated  in the  forward-looking  statements, see  the  Corporation's 
reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange  Commission 
from time to time. 
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  Part II - Other Information 
 
  Item 1. Legal Proceedings 
 
 
  As previously reported, the  Corporation was served in  November, 1995 with  a 
qui tam complaint under the civil False Claims Act in the United States District 
Court for the District of Connecticut.  The complaint in U.S. ex rel. Maloni  v. 
United Technologies Corporation, No.  395CV02431, involved allegations that  the 
Corporation failed to implement a required quality assurance system. The qui tam 
relator claimed unspecified  damages (trebled)  and penalties,  and the  Justice 
Department declined to take over the  litigation. The case was dismissed on  May 
23, 2000. 
 
  Except as  noted above,  there have  been no  material developments  in  legal 
proceedings during  the quarter  ended June  30,  2000.   For a  description  of 
previously reported legal  proceedings, refer to  Part II  - Other  Information, 
Item 1.  Legal Proceedings  of the  Corporation's Report  on Form  10-Q for  the 
quarter ended March 31,  2000 and to Part  I, Item 3.  Legal Proceedings of  the 
Corporation's annual report on Form 10-K for 1999. 
 
  The Corporation  does  not believe  that  resolution of  the  foregoing  legal 
matters will have a material adverse  effect upon the Corporation's  competitive 
position, results of operations, cash flow or financial position. 
 
  Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 
  The Corporation held its Annual Meeting of Shareowners on April 28, 2000. 
 
  The following individuals were nominated and elected to serve as directors: 
 
  Antonia H. Chayes, George David, Jean-Pierre Garnier, Jamie S. Gorelick,  Karl 
J. Krapek,  Charles  R.  Lee,  Richard D.  McCormick,  Frank  P.  Popoff,  Andre 
Villeneuve, Harold A. Wagner and Sanford I. Weill. 
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  The Shareowners voted as follows on the following matters: 
 
     1.   Election of  directors.   The voting  result for  each nominee  is  as 
   follows: 
 
   NAME               VOTES FOR   VOTES WITHHELD 
 
   Antonia Handler Chayes   453,314,232     4,169,033 
   George David             453,762,134     3,721,131 
   Jean-Pierre Garnier      453,800,469     3,682,796 
   Jamie S. Gorelick        453,634,282     3,848,983 
   Karl J. Krapek           453,745,496     3,737,769 
   Charles R. Lee           453,829,946     3,653,319 
   Richard D. McCormick     453,791,656     3,691,609 
   Frank P. Popoff          453,785,978     3,697,287 
   Andre Villeneuve         453,821,015     3,662,250 
   Harold A. Wagner         453,831,079     3,652,186 
   Sanford I. Weill         453,498,634     3,984,631 
 
     2.   The reappointment of the Corporation's independent public  accountants 
   was approved  by  a count  of  454,429,315 votes  for,  788,074  votes 
   against and 2,265,876 votes abstaining. 
 
     3.   A  proposal  to  amend  the  Corporation's  Restated  Certificate   of 
   Incorporation to increase the authorized  shares of Common Stock  from 
   1,000,000,000 shares to 2,000,000,000 shares  was approved by a  count 
   of 428,178,833 votes for, 26,435,921 votes against and 2,868,511 votes 
   abstaining. 
 
     4.   A proposal to approve continuation of the Covered Employee Performance 
   Pool as  a component  of the  Annual Executive  Compensation Plan  was 
   approved by a count of 418,885,372 votes for, 14,072,915 votes against 
   and 24,524,978 votes abstaining. 
 
     5.   A proposal to approve continued use  by the Committee on  Compensation 
   and Executive Development of certain performance targets to  determine 
   vesting of dividend  equivalent awards under  the Long Term  Incentive 
   Plan was  approved by  a count  of 418,262,259  votes for,  14,787,485 
   votes against and 24,433,521 votes abstaining. 
 
     6.   A shareowner proposal  recommending disclosure  of prior  governmental 
   service was rejected by a count of 7,278,615 votes for and 377,597,964 
   votes against, with 31,143,875 votes abstaining and 41,462,811  broker 
   non-votes. 
 
     7.   A shareowner proposal  recommending that the  Board of Directors  make 
   all possible lawful efforts to  implement and/or increase activity  on 
   each of the nine  MacBride Principles concerning employment  practices 
   in Northern Ireland was  rejected by a count  of 47,476,766 votes  for 
   and 330,141,312 votes  against, with 38,402,276  votes abstaining  and 
   41,462,911 broker non-votes. 
 
     8.   A shareowner proposal recommending disclosure of offset agreements was 
   rejected by  a count  of 25,346,610  votes for  and 347,405,832  votes 
   against, with 43,267,812 votes  abstaining and 41,463,011 broker  non- 
   votes. 
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  Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 
 
(a)  Exhibits 
 
     (3)(i) Amended Restated  Articles of  Incorporation, as  filed in  Delaware 
     June 21, 2000.* (Article Fourth of  the Restated Articles of  Incorporation 
     was amended to increase the authorized shares of common stock.) 
 
     (10)(iii)(A)(1) Amendment  1 to  United Technologies  Corporation Board  of 
     Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan.* 
 
     (10)(iii)(A)(2) Amendment 1 to United Technologies Corporation Non-employee 
     Director Stock Option Plan.* 
 
     (12) Statement re: computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges. * 
 
     (15) Letter re: unaudited interim financial information. * 
 
     (27) Financial data schedule.* 
 
(b)  Reports on Form 8-K. 
 
   No reports on Form  8-K were filed during  the quarter ended June  30, 
   2000. 
 
 
 
*Submitted electronically herewith. 
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         SIGNATURES 
 
 
Pursuant to  the  requirements of  the  Securities  Exchange Act  of  1934,  the 
Registrant has  duly caused  this report  to  be signed  on  its behalf  by  the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
 
          UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
 
 
Dated:  July 27, 2000          By: /s/ David J. FitzPatrick 
          David J. FitzPatrick 
          Senior Vice President and 
          Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Dated:  July 27, 2000          By: /s/ David G. Nord 
          David G. Nord 
          Acting Controller 
 
 
Dated:  July 27, 2000          By: /s/ William H. Trachsel 
          William H. Trachsel 
          Senior Vice President, General Counsel and 
          Secretary 
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          EXHIBIT INDEX 
 
 
     (3)(i) Amended Restated  Articles of  Incorporation, as  filed in  Delaware 
     June 21, 2000.* (Article Fourth of  the Restated Articles of  Incorporation 
     was amended to increase the authorized shares of common stock.) 
 
     (10)(iii)(A)(1) Amendment  1 to  United Technologies  Corporation Board  of 
     Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan.* 
 
     (10)(iii)(A)(2) Amendment 1 to United Technologies Corporation Non-employee 
     Director Stock Option Plan.* 
 
     (12) Statement re: computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges. * 
 
     (15) Letter re: unaudited interim financial information. * 
 
     (27) Financial data schedule.* 
 
 
 
*Submitted electronically herewith. 
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   STATEMENT RE: COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 
 
 
 
         Six Months Ended 
             June 30, 
 In Millions of Dollars                                        2000           1999 
                                                                  
 Fixed Charges: 
   Interest expense                                      $       179    $       112 
   Interest capitalized                                            8              7 
   One-third of rents*                                            32             37 
 
   Total Fixed Charges                                   $       219    $       156 
 
 Earnings: 
   Income from continuing operations before income 
   taxes   and minority interests                        $     1,366    $     1,073 
 
   Fixed charges per above                                       219            156 
   Less: interest capitalized                                    (8)            (7) 
         211            149 
 
   Amortization of interest capitalized                            8             13 
 
   Total Earnings                                        $     1,585    $     1,235 
 
 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges                             7.24           7.92 
 
 
 
* Reasonable approximation of the interest factor. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              Exhibit 15 
 
 
July 27, 2000 
 
 
 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
450 Fifth Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C.   20549 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
We are  aware that  our report  dated July  19, 2000  on our  review of  interim 
financial information  of United  Technologies Corporation  as  of and  for  the 
period ended June  30, 2000 and  included in the  Company's quarterly report  on 
Form 10-Q  for  the quarter  then  ended is  incorporated  by reference  in  the 
Prospectus constituting part of  its Registration Statements  on Form S-3  (Nos. 
333-89041 and 333-91959), in  the Registration Statement on  Form S-4 (No.  333- 
77991) as amended by Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8 (No.  333-77991- 
01) and in the Registration Statements  on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-21853,  333-18743, 
333-21851, 33-57769, 33-45440, 33-11255, 33-26580, 33-26627, 33-28974, 33-51385, 
33-58937, 2-87322, 333-77817, and 333-82911). 
 
Yours very truly, 
 
 
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Hartford, Connecticut 
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This schedule contains summary financial information extracted from the Condensed 
Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2000 (Unaudited) and the Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2000 
(Unaudited) and is qualified in its entirety by reference to such financial 
statements. 
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        RESTATED 
 
     CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
 
    of 
 
    UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
 
        Pursuant to Section 245 
 
    of the General Corporation Law 
 
       of the State of Delaware 
 
     ============== 
 
     Original Certificate of Incorporation filed 
 
      with the Secretary of State 
 
       of the State of Delaware 
 
    on July 21, 1934, 
 
     under the name 
 
      United Aircraft Corporation 
 
     ============== 



 
       FIRST:  The name of the Corporation is UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION. 
 
       SECOND: Its registered office or place of business in the State of 
     Delaware is to be located at Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, 
     in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle.  The name of its 
     registered agent is The Corporation Trust Company and the address of the 
     said registered agent is Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, in 
     the said City of Wilmington. 
 
       THIRD:  The nature of the business, or objects or purposes to be 
     transacted, promoted or carried on, are those necessary to engage in any 
     lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the 
     General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. 
 
       FOURTH:  The total number of shares of stock of all classes which the 
     Corporation shall have authority to issue is 2,250,000,000 shares, of which 
     250,000,000 shares shall be Preferred Stock of the par value of $1 each 
     (hereinafter called Preferred Stock) and 2,000,000,000 shares shall be 
     Common Stock of the par value of $1 each (hereinafter called Common Stock). 
 
       The designations and the powers, preferences and rights and the 
     qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof of the shares of each 
     class are as follows: 
 
   1.The Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more 
       series, the shares of each series to have such voting powers, full or 
       limited, and such designations, preferences and relative, participating, 
       optional or other special rights and qualifications, limitations or 
       restrictions thereof as are stated and expressed herein or in the 
       resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of such series, 
       adopted by the Board of Directors as hereinafter provided. 
 
   2.Authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board of Directors of 
       the Corporation, subject to the provisions of this Article Fourth and to 
       the limitations prescribed by law, to authorize the issue of one or more 
       series of Preferred Stock and with respect to each such series to fix by 
       resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of such series the 
       voting powers, full or limited, if any, of the shares of such series and 
       the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or 
       other special rights and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions 
       thereof.  The authority of the Board of Directors with respect to each 
       series shall include, but not be limited to, the determination or fixing 
       of the following: 
 
     (a) The designation of such series. 
 
     (b) The dividend rate of such series, the conditions and dates upon 
   which such dividends shall be payable, the relation which such 
   dividends shall bear to the dividends payable on any other class or 
   classes of stock, and whether such dividends shall be cumulative or 
   non-cumulative. 
 
     (c) Whether the shares of such series shall be subject to 
   redemption by the Corporation and, if made subject to such redemption, 
   the times, prices and other terms and conditions of such redemption. 
 
     (d) The terms and amount of any sinking fund provided for the 
   purchase or redemption of the shares of such series. 
 
     (e) Whether or not the shares of such series shall be convertible 
   into or exchangeable for shares of any other class or classes or of 
   any other series of any class or classes of stock of the Corporation, 



 
   and, if provision be made for conversion or exchange, the times, 
   prices, rates, adjustments, and other terms and conditions of such 
   conversion or exchange. 
 
     (f) The extent, if any, to which the holders of the shares of such 
   series shall be entitled to vote with respect to the election of 
   directors or otherwise. 
 
     (g) The restrictions, if any, on the issue or reissue or any 
   additional Preferred Stock. 
 
     (h) The rights of the holders of the shares of such series upon the 
   dissolution of, or upon the distribution of assets of, the 
   Corporation. 
 
   3.   Except as otherwise required by law and except for such voting 
       powers with respect to the election of directors or other matters as may 
       be stated in the resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors 
       providing for the issue of any series of Preferred Stock, the holders of 
       any such series shall have no voting power whatsoever.  Subject to such 
       restrictions as may be stated in the resolution or resolutions of the 
       Board of Directors providing for the issue of any series of Preferred 
       Stock, any amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation which shall 
       increase or decrease the authorized stock of any class or classes may be 
       adopted by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the 
       outstanding shares of the voting stock of the Corporation. 
 
   4. No holder of stock of any class of the Corporation shall as such 
       holder have any preemptive or preferential right of subscription to any 
       stock of any class of the Corporation or to any obligations convertible 
       into stock of the Corporation, issued or sold, or to any right of 
       subscription to, or to any warrant or option for the purchase of any 
       thereof, other than such (if any) as the Board of Directors of the 
       Corporation, in its discretion, may determine from time to time. 
 
   5.   The Corporation may from time to time issue and dispose of any of 
       the authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock or of Preferred Stock 
       for such consideration, not less than its par value, as may be fixed 
       from time to time by the Board of Directors, without action by the 
       stockholders.  The Board of Directors may provide for payment therefor 
       to be received by the Corporation in cash, property or services.  Any 
       and all such shares of the Preferred or Common Stock of the Corporation 
       the issuance of which has been so authorized, and for which 
       consideration so fixed by the Board of Directors has been paid or 
       delivered, shall be deemed full paid stock and shall not be liable to 
       any further call or assessment thereon. 
 
      Certificate of Designation 
       of 
       Series A ESOP Convertible Preferred Stock 
 
       The Board of Directors authorized the series of Preferred Stock 
     hereinafter provided for and caused adoption of the following resolution 
     creating a series of 20,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 
     per share, designated as Series A ESOP Convertible Preferred Stock: 
 
       RESOLVED that, pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of 
     Directors of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of its Restated 
     Certificate of Incorporation, a series of Preferred Stock of the Company 
     be, and it hereby is, created, and that the designation and amount thereof 
     and the voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional or 



 
     other special rights of the shares of such series, and the qualifications, 
     limitations or restrictions thereof are as follows: 
 
       SECTION 1.  Designation and Amount; Special Purpose Restricted Transfer 
     Issue. 
 
   A.The shares of this series of Preferred Stock shall be designated as 
       Series A ESOP Convertible Preferred Stock (Series A Preferred Stock) and 
       the number of shares constituting such series shall be 20,000,000. 
 
   B.Shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be issued only to a 
       trustee acting on behalf of any employee stock ownership plan or trust 
       or other similar employee benefit plan or trust maintained by the 
       Company or by any of its affiliates (the ESOP).  In the event of any 
       transfer of shares of Series A Preferred Stock to any person other than 
       any such plan trustee, the shares of Series A Preferred Stock so 
       transferred, upon such transfer and without any further action by the 
       Company or the holder, shall be automatically converted into shares of 
       Common Stock on the terms otherwise provided for the conversion of 
       shares of Series A Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock pursuant 
       to Section 5 hereof and no such transferee shall have any of  the voting 
       powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional or special 
       rights ascribed to shares of Series A Preferred Stock hereunder but, 
       rather, only the powers and rights pertaining to the Common Stock into 
       which such shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be so converted. 
       Certificates representing shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be 
       legended to reflect such restrictions on transfer.  Notwithstanding the 
       foregoing provisions of this paragraph B of Section 1, shares of Series 
       A Preferred Stock (i) may be converted into shares of Common Stock as 
       provided by Section 5 hereof and the shares of Common Stock issued upon 
       such conversion may be transferred by the holder thereof as permitted by 
       law and (ii) shall be redeemable by the Company upon the terms and 
       conditions provided by Sections 6, 7 and 8 hereof. 
 
       SECTION 2.  Dividends and Distributions. 
 
   A.Subject to the provisions for adjustment hereinafter set forth, the 
       holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to 
       receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds 
       legally available therefor, cumulative preferred dividends in cash 
       (Preferred Dividends) in an amount equal to $4.80 per share per annum, 
       and no more, payable quarterly on September 10, December 10, March 10 
       and June 10 of each year (each a Dividend Payment Date) commencing on 
       September 10, 1989, to holders of record at the start of business on 
       such Dividend Payment Date.  Preferred Dividends shall begin to accrue 
       on outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock from the date of 
       issuance of such shares of Series A Preferred Stock.  Preferred 
       Dividends shall accrue on a daily basis whether or not the Company shall 
       have earnings or surplus at the time, but Preferred Dividends accrued on 
       the shares of Series A Preferred Stock for any period less than a full 
       quarterly period between Dividend Payment Dates shall be computed on the 
       basis of a 360-day year of 30-day months.  A pro-rated dividend payment 
       based on the rate of $4.80 per annum per share shall accrue for the 
       period from the date of issuance until September 10, 1989.  Accumulated 
       but unpaid Preferred Dividends shall cumulate as of the Dividend Payment 
       Date on which they first become payable, but no interest shall accrue on 
       accumulated but unpaid Preferred Dividends. 
 
   B.So long as any Series A Preferred Stock shall be outstanding, no 
       dividend shall be declared or paid or set  apart for payment on any 
       other series of stock ranking on a parity with the Series A Preferred 
       Stock as to dividends, unless there shall also be or have been declared 



 
       and paid or set apart for payment on the Series A Preferred Stock, like 
       dividends for all dividend payment periods of the Series A Preferred 
       Stock ending on or before the dividend payment date of such parity 
       stock, ratably in proportion to the respective amounts of dividends 
       accumulated and unpaid through such dividend payment period on the 
       Series A Preferred Stock and accumulated and unpaid or payable on such 
       parity stock through the dividend payment period on such parity stock 
       next preceding such dividend payment date.  In the event that full 
       cumulative dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock have not been 
       declared and paid or set apart for payment when due, the Company shall 
       not declare or pay or set apart for payment any dividends or make any 
       other distributions on, or make any payment on account of the purchase, 
       redemption or other retirement of any other class of stock or series 
       thereof of the Company ranking, as to dividends or as to distributions 
       in the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, 
       junior to the Series A Preferred Stock until full cumulative dividends 
       on the Series A Preferred Stock shall have been paid or declared and 
       provided for; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not apply to 
       (i) any dividend payable solely in any shares of any stock ranking, as 
       to dividends or as to distributions in the event of a liquidation, 
       dissolution or winding-up of the Company, junior to the Series A 
       Preferred Stock, or (ii) the acquisition of shares of any stock ranking, 
       as to dividends or as to distributions in the event of a liquidation, 
       dissolution or winding-up of the Company, junior to the Series A 
       Preferred Stock either (A) pursuant to any employee or director 
       incentive or benefit plan or arrangement (including any employment, 
       severance or consulting agreement) of the Company or any subsidiary of 
       the Company heretofore or hereafter adopted or (B) in exchange solely 
       for shares of any other stock ranking junior to the Series A Preferred 
       Stock. 
 
       SECTION 3.  Voting Rights.  The holders of shares of Series A Preferred 
     Stock shall have the following voting rights: 
 
   A.The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote 
       on all matters submitted to a vote of the holders of Common Stock of the 
       Company, voting together with the holders of Common Stock as one class. 
       Each share of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the 
       number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which 
       such share of Series A Preferred Stock could be converted on the record 
       date for determining the stockholders entitled to vote, rounded to the 
       nearest one-tenth of a vote, multiplied by 1.3 (it being understood that 
       whenever the Conversion Price (as defined in Section 5 hereof) is 
       adjusted as provided in Section 9 hereof, the voting rights of the 
       Series A Preferred Stock shall also be similarly adjusted); provided, 
       however, that in the event that the New York Stock Exchange shall render 
       a final determination that, due to the foregoing voting rights, the 
       issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock violates the rules of such 
       Exchange in effect on the date of the first issuance of Series A 
       Preferred Stock and so notifies the Company of such determination, each 
       share of Series A Preferred Stock shall thereafter be entitled to the 
       number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which 
       such share of Series A Preferred Stock could be converted on the record 
       date for determining the stockholders entitled to vote, rounded to the 
       nearest one-tenth of a vote (it being understood that whenever the 
       Conversion Price is adjusted as provided in Section 9 hereof, the voting 
       rights of the Series A Preferred Stock shall also be similarly 
       adjusted).  Upon the occurrence of a change in voting rights as 
       described in the proviso of the immediately preceding sentence, the 
       Company shall give prompt notice thereof to the holders of Series A 
       Preferred Stock at the address shown on the books of the Company or any 



 
       transfer agent for the Series A Preferred Stock by first-class mail, 
       postage prepaid. 
 
   B.Except as otherwise required by law or set forth herein, holders of 
       Series A Preferred Stock shall have no special voting rights and their 
       consent shall not be required (except to the extent they are entitled to 
       vote with holders of Common Stock as set forth herein) for the taking of 
       any corporate action; provided, however, that the vote of at least 66 
       2/3% of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, voting 
       separately as a series, shall be necessary to adopt any alteration, 
       amendment or repeal of any provision of the Restated Certificate of 
       Incorporation of the Company, as amended, or this Resolution (including 
       any such alteration, amendment, or repeal effected by any merger or 
       consolidation in which the Company is the surviving or resulting 
       corporation) if such amendment, alteration or repeal would alter or 
       change the powers, preferences or special rights of the shares of Series 
       A Preferred Stock so as to affect them adversely. 
 
   C.At all elections of directors of the Company, each holder of Series 
       A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the same cumulative voting rights 
       as the holders of shares of the Company's Common Stock as described in 
       paragraph (h) of Article Eighth of the Restated Certificate of 
       Incorporation of the Company as in effect on the date of the first 
       issuance of Series A Preferred Stock and as amended from time to time. 
 
       SECTION 4.  Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding-Up. 
 
   A.Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or 
       winding-up of the affairs of the Company, the holders of Series A 
       Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive out of assets of the 
       Company which remain after satisfaction in full of all valid claims of 
       creditors of the Company and which are available for payment to 
       stockholders and subject to the rights of the holders of any stock of 
       the Company ranking senior to or on a parity with the Series A Preferred 
       Stock in respect of distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or 
       winding-up of the affairs of the Company, before any amount shall be 
       paid or distributed among the holders of Common Stock or any other 
       shares ranking junior to the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of 
       distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the affairs 
       of the Company, liquidating distributions in the amount of $65.00 per 
       share, plus an amount equal to all accumulated and unpaid dividends 
       thereupon to the date fixed for distribution, and no more.  If upon any 
       liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the affairs of the Company, 
       the amounts payable with respect to the Series A Preferred  Stock and 
       any other stock ranking as to any such distribution on a parity with the 
       Series A Preferred Stock are not paid in full, the holders of the Series 
       A Preferred Stock and of such other stock shall share ratably in any 
       distribution of assets in proportion to the full respective preferential 
       amounts to which they are entitled.  After payment of the full amount to 
       which they are entitled as provided by the foregoing provisions of this 
       paragraph 4A, the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall 
       not be entitled to any further right or claim to any of the remaining 
       assets of the Company. 
 
   B.Neither the merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any 
       other corporation, nor the merger or consolidation of any other 
       corporation with or into the Company, nor the sale, transfer or lease of 
       all or any portion of the assets of the Company, shall be deemed to be a 
       dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the affairs of the Company for 
       purposes of this Section 4, but the holders of Series A Preferred Stock 
       shall nevertheless be entitled in the event of any such merger or 
       consolidation to the rights provided by Section 8 hereof. 



 
 
   C.Written notice of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, 
       dissolution or winding-up of the Company, stating the payment date or 
       dates when, and the place or places where, the amounts distributable to 
       holders of Series A Preferred Stock in such circumstances shall be 
       payable, shall be given by first-class mail, postage prepaid, mailed not 
       less than twenty (20) days prior to any payment date stated therein, to 
       the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, at the address shown on the 
       books of the Company or any transfer agent for the Series A Preferred 
       Stock. 
 
       SECTION 5.  Conversion into Common Stock. 
 
   A.A holder of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled, 
       at any time prior to the close of business on the date fixed for 
       redemption of such shares pursuant to Section 6, 7, or 8 hereof, to 
       cause any or all of such shares to be converted into shares of Common 
       Stock, at a conversion rate equal to the ratio of (i) $65.00 to (ii) the 
       amount which (A) initially shall be $65.00 and (B) shall be adjusted as 
       hereinafter provided (such amount, as it may be so adjusted from time to 
       time, is hereinafter sometimes referred to as the Conversion Price) 
       (that is, a conversion rate initially equivalent to one share of Common 
       Stock for each share of Series A Preferred Stock so converted but that 
       is subject to adjustment as the Conversion Price is adjusted as 
       hereinafter  provided). 
 
   B.   Any holder of shares of Series A Preferred Stock desiring to 
       convert such shares into shares of Common Stock shall surrender the 
       certificate or certificates representing the shares of Series A 
       Preferred Stock being converted, duly assigned or endorsed for transfer 
       to the Company (or accompanied by duly executed stock powers relating 
       thereto), at the principal executive office of the Company or the 
       offices of the transfer agent for the Series A Preferred Stock or such 
       office or offices in the continental United States of an agent for 
       conversion as may from time to time be designated by notice to the 
       holders of the Series A Preferred Stock by the Company or the transfer 
       agent for the Series A Preferred Stock, accompanied by written notice of 
       conversion; provided, however, that in the event that the certificate or 
       certificates representing the shares of Series A Preferred Stock so to 
       be converted are held (whether in pledge or otherwise) by the Company or 
       such transfer agent or such agent for conversion, such written notice 
       may be sent by registered mail, hand delivery or by telecopier confirmed 
       in writing.  Such notice of conversion shall specify (i) the number of 
       shares of Series A Preferred Stock to be converted and the name or names 
       in which such holder wishes the certificate or certificates for Common 
       Stock and for any shares of Series A Preferred Stock not to be so 
       converted to be issued, and (ii) the address to which such holder wishes 
       delivery to be made of such new certificates to be issued upon such 
       conversion. 
 
   C.Upon surrender of a certificate representing a share or shares of 
       Series A Preferred Stock for conversion, the Company shall issue and 
       send by hand delivery (with receipt to be acknowledged) or by first- 
       class mail, postage prepaid, to the holder thereof or to such holder's 
       designee, at the address designated by such holder, a certificate or 
       certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such 
       holder shall be entitled upon conversion.  In the event that there shall 
       have been surrendered a certificate or certificates representing shares 
       of Series A Preferred Stock, only part of which are to be converted, the 
       Company shall issue and deliver to such holder or such holder's designee 
       a new certificate or certificates representing the number of shares of 
       Series A Preferred Stock which shall not have been converted. 



 
 
   D.The issuance by the Company of shares of Common Stock upon a 
       conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock into shares of Common 
       Stock made at the option of the holder thereof shall be effective as of 
       the earlier of (i) the delivery to such holder or such holder's designee 
       of the certificates representing the shares of Common Stock issued upon 
       conversion thereof or (ii) the commencement of business on the second 
       business day after the surrender of the certificate or certificates for 
       the shares of Series A Preferred Stock to be converted, duly assigned or 
       endorsed for transfer to the Company (or accompanied by duly executed 
       stock powers relating thereto) as provided by this Resolution.  On and 
       after the effective date of conversion, the person or persons entitled 
       to receive the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be 
       treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such shares 
       of Common Stock, but no allowance or adjustment shall be made in respect 
       of dividends payable to holders of Common Stock in respect of any period 
       prior to such effective date.  The Company shall not be obligated to pay 
       any dividends which shall have been declared and shall be payable to 
       holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock on a Dividend Payment Date 
       if such Dividend Payment Date for such dividend shall coincide with or 
       be on or subsequent to the effective date of conversion of such shares. 
 
   E.The Company shall not be obligated to deliver to holders of Series 
       A Preferred Stock any fractional share or shares of Common Stock 
       issuable upon any conversion of such shares of Series A Preferred Stock, 
       but in lieu thereof may make a cash payment in respect thereof in any 
       manner permitted by law. 
 
   F.Whenever the Company shall issue shares of Common Stock upon 
       conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock as contemplated by this 
       Section 5, the Company shall issue together with each such share of 
       Common Stock one right to purchase Common Stock of the Company (or other 
       securities in lieu thereof) pursuant to the Rights Agreement dated as of 
       December 16, 1985 between the Company and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company 
       of New York, as Rights Agent, as such agreement may from time to time be 
       amended, or any other rights issued to holders of Common Stock of the 
       Company in addition thereto or in replacement therefor, whether or not 
       such rights shall be exercisable at such time, but only if such rights 
       are issued and outstanding and held by other holders of Common Stock of 
       the Company at such time and have not expired. 
 
   G.The Company shall at all times reserve and keep available out of 
       its authorized and unissued Common Stock, solely for issuance upon the 
       conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock as herein provided, 
       free from any preemptive rights, such number of shares of Common Stock 
       as shall from time to time be issuable upon the conversion of all the 
       shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding.  The Company shall 
       prepare and shall use its best efforts to obtain and keep in force such 
       governmental or regulatory permits or other authorizations as may be 
       required by law, and shall comply with all requirements as to 
       registration or qualification of the Common Stock, in order to enable 
       the Company lawfully to issue and deliver to each holder of record of 
       Series A Preferred Stock such number of shares of its Common Stock as 
       shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all 
       shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding and convertible into 
       shares of Common Stock. 
 
       SECTION 6.  Redemption at the Option of the Company. 
 
   A.The Series A Preferred Stock shall be redeemable, in whole or in 
       part, at the option of the Company at any time after June 10, 1994, or 



 
       on or before June 10, 1994 if permitted by paragraph D of this Section 
       6, at the following redemption prices per share: 
 
 
       During the 
       Twelve-         Price 
       Month Period    Per 
       Beginning       Share 
       June 10 
 
         1989          $69.80 
         1990          $69.32 
         1991          $68.84 
         1992          $68.36 
         1993          $67.88 
         1994          $67.40 
         1995          $66.92 
         1996          $66.44 
         1997          $65.96 
         1998          $65.48 
 
       and thereafter at $65.00 per share, plus, in each case, an amount equal 
       to all accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date fixed for 
       redemption, subject to the rights, if any, of holders of record on the 
       relevant record date to receive dividends on any Dividend Payment Date 
       occurring prior to the date fixed for redemption.  Payment of the 
       redemption price shall be made by the Company in cash or shares of 
       Common Stock, or a combination thereof, as permitted by paragraph E of 
       this Section 6.  From and after the date fixed for redemption, dividends 
       on shares of Series A Preferred Stock called for redemption will cease 
       to accrue, such shares will no longer be deemed to be outstanding and 
       all rights in respect of such shares of the Company shall cease, except 
       the right to receive the redemption price.  If less than all of the 
       outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the 
       Company shall either redeem a portion of the shares of each holder 
       determined pro rata based on the number of shares held by each holder or 
       shall select the shares to be redeemed by lot, as may be determined by 
       the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
   B.Unless otherwise required by law, notice of any redemption pursuant 
       to paragraphs A, C or D of this Section 6 will be sent to the holders of 
       Series A Preferred Stock at the address shown on the books of the 
       Company or any transfer agent for the Series A Preferred Stock by first- 
       class mail, postage prepaid, mailed not less than thirty (30) days nor 
       more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  Each such 
       notice shall state: 
 
     (i) the redemption date; 
 
     (ii) the total number of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock to 
   be redeemed and, if fewer than all the shares held by such holder are 
   to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such 
   holder; 
 
     (iii) the redemption price; 
 
     (iv)  the place or places where certificates for such shares are to 
   be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; 
 
     (v)   that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to 
   accrue on such redemption date; and 



 
     (vi)  the conversion rights of the shares to be redeemed, the 
   period within which conversion rights may be exercised, and the 
   Conversion Price and number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon 
   conversion of a share of Series A Preferred Stock at the time.  The 
   foregoing notice provisions may be amended if necessary so as to 
   comply with the optional redemption provisions for preferred stock as 
   qualifying employer securities or employer securities within the 
   meaning of Section 4975(e)(8) and 409(l) under the Internal Revenue 
   Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), or under any successor provision 
   thereof or as qualifying employer securities under Section 407(d)(5) 
   of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act or under any successor 
   provision thereof.  Upon surrender of the certificates for any shares 
   so called for redemption and not previously converted (properly 
   endorsed or assigned for transfer, if the Board of Directors of the 
   Company shall so require and the notice shall so state), such shares 
   shall be redeemed by the Company at the date fixed for redemption and 
   at the redemption price set forth in this Section 6. 
 
       C.   (i)   In the event of a change in the federal tax laws of the 
   United States of America (or any regulations or rulings promulgated 
   thereunder), or any change in the application, enforcement or 
   interpretation in respect of such laws, regulations or rulings, 
   including any of the foregoing taken by a court of competent 
   jurisdiction, which has the effect of precluding the Company from 
   claiming any of the tax deductions, in whole or in part, for dividends 
   paid on the Series A Preferred Stock when such dividends are used as 
   provided under Section 404(k)(2) of the Code in effect on the date 
   shares of Series A Preferred Stock are initially issued, or 
 
     (ii)  upon certification by the Company to the holders of the 
   Series A Preferred Stock that the Company has determined, based on 
   correspondence from, or the commencement of litigation by, the 
   Department of Labor or the Internal Revenue Service to or against the 
   Company, the ESOP or the trustee of the ESOP and the advice of counsel 
   that the issuance of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock to the 
   holders was not in compliance with applicable law or regulation, or 
 
     (iii)  if the ESOP, as amended, or any successor plan is determined 
   by the Internal Revenue Service not to be qualified under Section 
   401(a) and 4975(e)(7) of the Code, or 
 
     (iv)  in the event of a change in the federal tax laws of the 
   United States of America which permits the Company to claim a tax 
   deduction, in whole or in part, for any dividends paid on any of the 
   Company's common equity securities (for federal tax purposes) other 
   than in relation to the ESOP or similar plan, the Company may, at any 
   time thereafter and in its sole discretion and notwithstanding 
   anything to the contrary in paragraph A of this Section 6, elect to 
   redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, for $65.00 
   per share, plus an amount equal to accumulated and unpaid dividends 
   thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  Notice of such redemption 
   shall be provided in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
   paragraph B of this Section 6. 
 
       D. In the event that the Company shall at any time terminate the ESOP, 
     the Company may, at any time thereafter and in its sole discretion and 
     notwithstanding anything to the contrary in paragraph A of this Section 6, 
     elect to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at the 
     redemption price per share set forth in paragraph A of this Section 6 
     applicable at the time of such termination (plus an amount equal to all 
     accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date fixed for redemption) 



 
     and otherwise on the terms and conditions set forth in paragraphs A and B 
     of this Section 6. 
 
       E. The Company, at its option, may make payment of the redemption price 
     required upon redemption of shares of Series A Preferred Stock in cash or 
     in shares of Common Stock, or in a combination of such shares and cash, any 
     such shares to be valued for such purpose at their Fair Market Value (as 
     defined in paragraph G of Section 9 hereof, provided, however, that in 
     calculating their Fair Market Value the Adjustment Period shall be deemed 
     to be the five (5) consecutive trading days preceding, and including, the 
     date of redemption).  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in 
     the event that the Company elects, by a resolution of its Board of 
     Directors, to make payment of all future redemption prices solely in cash 
     or solely in shares of Common Stock of the Company and notifies the holders 
     of Series A Preferred Stock of such election, all such payments thereafter 
     shall be made in compliance with such election and such election shall be 
     irrevocable. 
 
     SECTION 7.  Other Redemption Rights.  Shares of Series A Preferred Stock 
  shall be redeemed by the Company, to the extent permitted by applicable 
  statutes and regulations, for shares of Common Stock, or, if the Company so 
  elects, for cash, or for a combination of such shares and cash, any such 
  shares of Common Stock to be valued for such purpose as provided by the last 
  sentence of this Section 7, at a redemption price of $65.00 per share plus 
  accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date fixed for redemption, at 
  the option of the holder, at any time and from time to time upon notice to 
  the Company given not less than five (5) business days prior to the date 
  fixed by the holder in such notice for such redemption, (i) when and to the 
  extent necessary, for such holder to provide for distributions required to be 
  made under, or to satisfy an investment election provided to participants in 
  accordance with, the ESOP, as the same may be amended, or any successor plan 
  to participants in the ESOP, (ii) when and to the extent necessary, for such 
  holder to make payment of principal, interest or premium due and payable on 
  any indebtedness incurred by the holder for the benefit of the ESOP, or (iii) 
  if the ESOP is determined by the Internal Revenue Service no longer to be 
  qualified within the meaning of Sections 401(a) and 4975(e)(7) of the Code, 
  but in such event the holder shall have such option only at such time as the 
  Company is not in good faith taking steps to reinstate the qualification of 
  the ESOP under such Sections.  Any shares of Common Stock for which Series A 
  Preferred Stock is redeemed pursuant to this Section 7 shall be valued for 
  such purpose (x) in the case of any redemption pursuant to either of clauses 
  (ii) and (iii) of the next preceding sentence, as provided in paragraph E of 
  Section 6 and (y) in the case of any redemption pursuant to clause (i) of the 
  next preceding sentence to provide for distributions required to be made or 
  to satisfy an investment election, at the Fair Market Value (as defined in 
  paragraph G of Section 9 hereof) of such shares of Common Stock; provided, 
  however, that in calculating such Fair Market Value, the Adjustment Period 
  shall be deemed to be the applicable valuation date for any such distribution 
  or with respect to any such investment election, in either case, as provided 
  in the ESOP. 
 
     SECTION 8.  Consolidation, Merger, etc. 
 
     A.In the event that the Company shall consummate any consolidation or 
  merger or similar transaction, however named, pursuant to which the 
  outstanding shares of Common Stock are by operation of law exchanged solely 
  for or changed, reclassified or converted solely into stock of any successor 
  or resulting company (including the Company) that constitutes qualifying 
  employer securities with respect to a holder of Series A Preferred Stock 
  within the meaning of Section 4975(e)(8) of the Code and Section 407(d)(5) of 
  the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or any 
  successor provisions of law, and, if applicable, for a cash payment in lieu 



 
  of fractional shares, if any, the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock of 
  such holder shall be assumed by and shall become preferred stock of such 
  successor or resulting company, having in respect of such company insofar as 
  possible the same powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional 
  or other special rights (including the redemption rights provided by Section 
  6, 7, and 8 hereof), and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions 
  thereon, that the Series A Preferred Stock had immediately prior to such 
  transaction, except that after such transaction each share of the Series A 
  Preferred Stock shall be convertible, otherwise on the terms and conditions 
  provided by Section 5 hereof, into the qualifying employer securities so 
  receivable by a holder  of the number of shares of Common Stock into which 
  such shares of Series A Preferred Stock could have been converted immediately 
  prior to such transaction if such holder of Common Stock failed to exercise 
  any rights of election to receive any kind or amount of stock, securities, 
  cash or other property (other than such qualifying employer securities and a 
  cash payment, if applicable, in lieu of fractional shares) receivable upon 
  such transaction (provided that, if the kind or amount of qualifying employer 
  securities receivable upon such transaction is not the same for each non- 
  electing share, then the kind and amount of qualifying employer securities 
  receivable upon such transaction for each non-electing share shall be the 
  kind and amount so receivable per share by a plurality of the non-electing 
  shares).  The rights of the Series A Preferred Stock as preferred stock of 
  such successor or resulting company shall successively be subject to 
  adjustments pursuant to Section 9 hereof after any such transaction as nearly 
  equivalent to the adjustments provided for by such section prior to such 
  transaction.  The Company shall not consummate any such merger, consolidation 
  or similar transaction unless all then outstanding shares of the Series A 
  Preferred Stock shall be assumed and authorized by the successor or resulting 
  company as aforesaid. 
 
     B.In the Event that the Company shall consummate any consolidation or 
  merger or similar transaction, however named, pursuant to which the 
  outstanding shares of Common Stock are by operation of law exchanged for or 
  changed, reclassified or converted into other stock or securities or cash or 
  any other property, or any combination thereof, other than any such 
  consideration which is constituted solely of qualifying employer securities 
  (as referred to in paragraph A of this Section 8) and cash payments, if 
  applicable, in lieu of fractional shares, outstanding shares of Series A 
  Preferred Stock shall, without any action on the part of the Company or any 
  holder thereof (but subject to paragraph C of this Section 8), be deemed 
  converted by virtue of such merger, consolidation or similar transaction 
  immediately prior to such consummation into the number of shares of Common 
  Stock into which such shares of Series A Preferred Stock could have been 
  converted at such time and each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall, by 
  virtue of such transaction and on the same terms as apply to the holders of 
  Common Stock, be converted into or exchanged for the aggregate amount of 
  stock, securities, cash or other property (payable in like kind) receivable 
  by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock into which such shares of 
  Series A Preferred Stock could have been converted immediately prior to such 
  transaction if such holder of Common Stock failed to exercise any rights of 
  election as to the kind or amount of stock, securities, cash or other 
  property receivable upon such transaction (provided that, if the kind or 
  amount of stock, securities, cash or other property receivable upon such 
  transaction is not the same for each non-electing share, then the kind and 
  amount of stock, securities, cash or other property receivable upon such 
  transaction for each non-electing share shall be the kind and amount so 
  receivable per share by a plurality of the non-electing shares). 
 
     C.In the event the Company shall enter into any agreement providing for 
  any consolidation or merger or similar transaction described in paragraph B 
  of this Section 8, then the Company shall as soon as practicable thereafter 
  (and in any event at least fifteen (15) business days before consummation of 



 
  such transaction) give notice of such agreement and the material terms 
  thereof to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock and each such holder shall 
  have the right to elect, by written notice to the Company, to receive, upon 
  consummation of such transaction (if and when such transaction is 
  consummated), from the Company or the successor of the Company, in redemption 
  and retirement of such Series A Preferred Stock, a cash payment equal to the 
  redemption price per share of Series A Preferred Stock, applicable at the 
  date such written notice is given, set forth in paragraph A of Section 6 
  hereof, plus an amount in cash equal to any accumulated and unpaid dividends 
  on such Series A Preferred Stock to the date of consummation of such 
  transaction.  In the event that any such election is made by any holder, such 
  redemption and retirement of Series A Preferred Stock that is the subject of 
  such election shall be a condition to the consummation of such transaction. 
  No such notice of redemption shall be effective unless given to the Company 
  prior to the close of business on the fifth business day prior to 
  consummation of such transaction, unless the Company or the successor of the 
  Company shall waive such prior notice, but any notice of redemption so given 
  prior to such time may be withdrawn by notice of withdrawal given to the 
  Company prior to the close of business on the fifth business day prior to 
  consummation of such transaction. 
 
     SECTION 9.  Anti-dilution Adjustments. 
 
     A.In the event the Company shall, at any time or from time to time while 
  any of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, (i) pay a 
  dividend or make a distribution in respect of the Common Stock in shares of 
  Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (iii) 
  combine the outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of 
  shares, in each case whether by reclassification of shares, recapitalization 
  of the Company (including a recapitalization effected by a merger or 
  consolidation to which Section 8 hereof does not apply) or otherwise, the 
  Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to such action shall be adjusted 
  by multiplying such Conversion Price by a fraction the numerator of which is 
  the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately before such 
  event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock 
  outstanding immediately after such event.  An adjustment made pursuant to 
  this paragraph 9 A shall be given effect, upon payment of such a dividend or 
  distribution, as of the record date for the determination of shareholders 
  entitled to receive such dividend or distribution (on a retroactive basis) 
  and in the case of a subdivision or combination shall become effective 
  immediately as of the effective date thereof. 
 
     B.In the event that the Company shall, at any time or from time to time 
  while any of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, issue to 
  holders of shares of Common Stock as a dividend or distribution, including by 
  way of a reclassification of shares or a recapitalization of the Company, any 
  right or warrant to purchase shares of Common Stock (but not including, as 
  such a right or warrant, any security convertible into or exchangeable for 
  shares of Common Stock) at a purchase price per share less than the Fair 
  Market Value (as hereinafter defined) of a share of Common Stock on the date 
  of issuance of such right or warrant, then, subject to the provisions of 
  paragraphs E and F of this Section 9, the conversion price shall be adjusted 
  by multiplying such Conversion Price by a fraction the numerator of which 
  shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately before 
  such issuance of rights or warrants plus the number of shares of Common Stock 
  which could be purchased at the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock 
  at the time of such issuance for the maximum aggregate consideration payable 
  upon exercise in full of all such rights or warrants and the denominator of 
  which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately 
  before such issuance of rights or warrants plus the maximum number of shares 
  of Common Stock that could be acquired upon exercise in full of all such 
  rights and warrants. 



 
 
     C.In the event the Company shall, at any time or from time to time while 
  any of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, issue, sell or 
  exchange shares of Common Stock (other than pursuant to any right or warrant 
  to purchase or acquire shares of Common Stock (including as such a right or 
  warrant any security convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common 
  Stock) and other than pursuant to any employee or director incentive or 
  benefit plan or arrangement, including any employment, severance or 
  consulting agreement, of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company 
  heretofore or hereafter adopted) for a consideration having a Fair Market 
  Value on the date of such issuance, sale or exchange less than the Fair 
  Market Value of such shares on the date of such issuance, sale or exchange, 
  then, subject to the provisions of paragraphs E and F of this Section 9, the 
  Conversion Price shall be adjusted by multiplying such Conversion Price by 
  the fraction the numerator of which shall be the sum of (i) the Fair Market 
  Value of all the shares of Common Stock outstanding on the day immediately 
  preceding the first public announcement of such issuance, sale or exchange 
  plus (ii) the Fair Market Value of the consideration received by the Company 
  in respect of such issuance, sale or exchange of shares of Common Stock, and 
  the denominator of which shall be the product of (i) the Fair Market Value of 
  a share of Common Stock on the day immediately preceding the first public 
  announcement of such issuance, sale or exchange multiplied by (ii) the sum of 
  the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on such day plus the number 
  of shares of Common Stock so issued, sold or exchanged by the Company.  In 
  the event the Company shall, at any time or from time to time while any 
  shares of Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, issue, sell or exchange 
  any right or warrant to purchase or acquire shares of Common Stock (including 
  as such a right or warrant any security convertible into or exchangeable for 
  shares of Common Stock), other than any such issuance to holders of shares of 
  Common Stock as a dividend or distribution (including by way of a 
  reclassification of shares or a recapitalization of the Company) and other 
  than pursuant to any employee or director incentive or benefit plan or 
  arrangement (including any employment, severance or consulting agreement) of 
  the Company or any subsidiary of the Company heretofore or hereafter adopted, 
  for a consideration having a Fair Market Value on the date of such issuance, 
  sale or exchange less than the Non-Dilutive Amount (as hereinafter defined), 
  then, subject to the provisions of paragraphs E and F of this Section 9, the 
  Conversion Price shall be adjusted by multiplying such Conversion Price by a 
  fraction the numerator of which shall be the sum of (i) the Fair Market Value 
  of all the shares of Common Stock outstanding on the day immediately 
  preceding the first public announcement of such issuance, sale or exchange 
  plus (ii) the Fair Market Value of the consideration received by the Company 
  in respect of such issuance, sale or exchange of such right or warrant plus 
  (iii) the Fair Market Value at the time of such issuance of the consideration 
  which the Company would receive upon exercise in full of all such rights or 
  warrants, and the denominator of which shall be the product of (i) the Fair 
  Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the day immediately preceding the 
  first public announcement of such issuance, sale or exchange multiplied by 
  (ii) the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on such day 
  plus the maximum number of shares of Common Stock which could be acquired 
  pursuant to such right or warrant at the time of the issuance, sale or 
  exchange of such right or warrant (assuming shares of Common Stock could be 
  acquired pursuant to such right or warrant at such time). 
 
     D.In the event the Company shall, at any time or from time to time while 
  any of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, make an 
  Extraordinary Distribution (as hereinafter defined) in respect of the Common 
  Stock, whether by dividend, distribution, reclassification of shares or 
  recapitalization of the Company (including a recapitalization or 
  reclassification effected by a merger or consolidation to which Section 8 
  hereof does not apply) or effect a Pro Rata Repurchase (as hereinafter 
  defined) of Common Stock, the Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to 



 
  such Extraordinary Distribution or Pro Rata Repurchase shall, subject to 
  paragraphs E and F of this Section 9, be adjusted by multiplying such 
  Conversion Price by the fraction the numerator of which is (i) the product of 
  (x) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately before such 
  Extraordinary Distribution or Pro Rata Repurchase multiplied by (y) the Fair 
  Market Value (as herein defined) of a share of Common Stock on the record 
  date with respect to an Extraordinary Distribution, or on the applicable 
  expiration date (including all extensions thereof) of any tender offer which 
  is a Pro Rata Repurchase, or on the date of purchase with respect to any Pro 
  Rata Repurchase which is not a tender offer, as the case may be, minus (ii) 
  the Fair Market Value of the Extraordinary Distribution or the aggregate 
  purchase price of the Pro Rata Repurchase, as the case may be, and the 
  denominator of which shall be the product of (a) the number of shares of 
  Common Stock outstanding immediately before such Extraordinary Dividend or 
  Pro Rata Repurchase minus, in the case of a Pro Rata Repurchase, the number 
  of shares of Common Stock repurchased by the Company multiplied by (b) the 
  Fair Market Value of a share of Common stock on the record date with respect 
  to an Extraordinary Distribution or on the applicable expiration date 
  (including all extensions thereof) of any tender offer which is a Pro Rata 
  Repurchase or on the date of purchase with respect to any Pro Rata Repurchase 
  which is not a tender offer, as the case may be.  The Company shall send each 
  holder of Series A Preferred Stock (i) notice of its intent to make any 
  dividend or distribution and (ii) notice of any offer of the Company to make 
  a Pro Rata Repurchase, in each case at the same time as, or as soon as 
  practicable after, such offer is first communicated (including by 
  announcement of a record date in accordance with the rules of any stock 
  exchange on which the Common Stock is listed or admitted to trading) to 
  holders of Common Stock.  Such notice shall indicate the intended record date 
  and the amount and nature of such dividend or distribution, or the number of 
  shares subject to such offer for a Pro Rata Repurchase and the purchase price 
  payable by the Company pursuant to such offer, as well as the Conversion 
  Price and the number of shares of Common Stock into which a share of Series A 
  Preferred Stock may be converted at such time. 
 
     E.Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section 9, the Company 
  shall not be required to make any adjustment of the Conversion Price unless 
  such adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least one percent 
  (1%) in the Conversion Price.  Any lesser adjustment shall be carried forward 
  and shall be made no later than the time of, and together with, the next 
  subsequent adjustment which, together with any adjustment or adjustments so 
  carried forward, shall amount to an increase or decrease of at least one 
  percent (1%) in the Conversion Price.  In addition, notwithstanding any other 
  provisions of this Section 9, the Company shall not be required to make any 
  adjustment of the Conversion Price that would result in the Company receiving 
  less than the par value of the Common Stock upon conversion of the Series A 
  Preferred Stock into Common Stock. 
 
     F.If the Company shall make any dividend or distribution on the Common 
  Stock or issue any Common Stock, other capital stock or other security of the 
  Company or any rights or warrants to purchase or acquire any such security, 
  which transaction does not result in an adjustment to the Conversion Price 
  pursuant to the forgoing provisions of this Section 9, the Board of Directors 
  of the Company shall have the authority to consider whether such action is of 
  such a nature that an adjustment to the Conversion Price should equitably be 
  made in respect of such transaction.  If in such case the Board of Directors 
  of the Company determines that an adjustment to the Conversion Price should 
  be made, an adjustment shall be made effective as of such date, as determined 
  by the Board of Directors of the Company.  The determination of the Board of 
  Directors of the Company as to whether an adjustment to the Conversion Price 
  should be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this paragraph 9 F, 
  and, if so, as to what adjustment should be made and when, shall be final and 
  binding on the Company and all stockholders of the Company.  The Company 



 
  shall be entitled to make such additional adjustments in the Conversion 
  Price, in addition to those required by the foregoing provisions of this 
  Section 9, as shall be necessary in order that any dividend or distribution 
  in shares of capital stock of the Company, subdivision, reclassification or 
  combination of shares of stock of the Company or any recapitalization of the 
  Company shall not be taxable to holders of the Common Stock. 
 
     G.For purposes of this Resolution, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
       Extraordinary Distribution shall mean any dividend or other distribution 
     (effected while any of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are 
     outstanding) of (i) cash, where the aggregate amount of such cash dividend 
     or distribution together with the amount of all cash dividends and 
     distributions made during the preceding period of 12 months, when combined 
     with the aggregate amount of all Pro Rata Repurchases (for this purpose, 
     including only that portion of the aggregate purchase price of such Pro 
     Rata Repurchase which is in excess of the Fair Market Value of the Common 
     Stock repurchased as determined on the applicable expiration date 
     (including all extensions thereof) of any tender offer or exchange offer 
     which is a Pro Rata Repurchase, or the date of purchase with respect to any 
     other Pro Rata Repurchase which is not a tender offer or exchange offer 
     made during such period), exceeds twelve and one-half percent (12 1/2%) of 
     the aggregate Fair Market Value of all shares of Common Stock outstanding 
     on the record date for determining the shareholders entitled to receive 
     such Extraordinary Distribution and (ii) any shares of capital stock of the 
     Company (other than shares of Common Stock), other securities of the 
     Company (other than securities of the type referred to in paragraph B of 
     this Section 9), evidences of indebtedness of the Company or any other 
     person or any other property (including shares of any subsidiary of the 
     Company), or any combination thereof.  The Fair Market Value of an 
     Extraordinary Distribution for purposes of paragraph D of this Section 9 
     shall be the sum of the Fair Market Value of such Extraordinary 
     Distribution plus the amount of any cash dividends which are not 
     Extraordinary Distributions made during such twelve month period and not 
     previously included in the calculation of an adjustment pursuant to 
     paragraph D of this Section 9. 
 
       Fair Market Value shall mean, as to shares of Common Stock or any other 
     class of capital stock or securities of the Company or any other issuer 
     which are publicly traded, the average of the Current Market Prices (as 
     hereinafter defined) of such shares or securities for each day of the 
     Adjustment Period (as hereinafter defined).  Current Market Price of 
     publicly traded shares of Common Stock or any other class of capital stock 
     or other security of the Company or any other issuer for a day shall mean 
     the last reported sales price, regular way, or, in case no sale takes place 
     on such day, the average of the reported closing bid and asked prices, 
     regular way, in either case as reported on the New York Stock Exchange 
     Composite Tape or, if such security is not listed or admitted to trading on 
     the New York Stock Exchange, on the principal national securities exchange 
     on which such security is listed or admitted to trading or, if not listed 
     or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, on the NASDAQ 
     National Market System or, if such security is not quoted on such National 
     Market System, the average of the closing bid and asked prices on each such 
     day in the over-the-counter market as reported by NASDAQ or, if bid and 
     asked prices for such security on each such day shall not have been 
     reported through NASDAQ, the average of the bid and asked prices for such 
     day as furnished by any New York Stock Exchange member firm regularly 
     making a market in such security selected from time to time for such 
     purpose by the Board of Directors of the Company or a committee thereof on 
     each trading day during the Adjustment period.  Adjustment Period shall 
     mean the period of five (5) consecutive trading days, selected by the Board 
     of Directors of the Company or a committee thereof, during the 20 trading 



 
     days preceding, and including, the date as of which the Fair Market Value 
     of a security is to be determined.  The Fair Market Value of any security 
     which is not publicly traded or of any other property shall mean the fair 
     value thereof as determined by an independent investment banking or 
     appraisal firm experienced in the valuation of such securities or property 
     selected in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company or a 
     committee thereof, or, if no such investment banking or appraisal firm is 
     in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors or such committee 
     available to make such determination, as determined in good faith by the 
     Board of Directors of the Company or such committee. 
 
       Non-Dilutive Amount in respect of an issuance, sale or exchange by the 
     Company of any right or warrant to purchase or acquire shares of Common 
     Stock (including any security convertible into or exchangeable for shares 
     of Common Stock) shall mean the remainder of (i) the product of the Fair 
     Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the day preceding the first 
     public announcement of such issuance, sale or exchange multiplied by the 
     maximum number of shares of Common Stock which could be acquired on such 
     date upon the exercise in full of such rights and warrants (including upon 
     the conversion or exchange of all such convertible or exchangeable 
     securities), whether or not exercisable (or convertible or exchangeable) at 
     such date, minus (ii) the aggregate amount payable pursuant to such right 
     or warrant to purchase or acquire such maximum number of shares of Common 
     Stock; provided, however, that in no event shall the Non-Dilutive Amount be 
     less than zero.  For purposes of the foregoing sentence, in the case of a 
     security convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock, the 
     amount payable pursuant to a right or warrant to purchase or acquire shares 
     of Common Stock shall be the Fair Market Value of such security on the date 
     of the issuance, sale or exchange of such security by the Company. 
 
       Pro Rata Repurchase shall mean any purchase of shares of Common Stock by 
     the Company or any subsidiary thereof, whether for cash, shares of capital 
     stock of the Company, other securities of the Company, evidences of 
     indebtedness of the Company or any other person or any other property 
     (including shares of a subsidiary of the Company), or any combination 
     thereof, effected while any of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock are 
     outstanding, pursuant to any tender offer or exchange offer subject to 
     Section 13(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
     Exchange Act), or any successor provision of law, or pursuant to any other 
     offer available to substantially all holders of Common Stock; provided, 
     however, that no purchase of shares by the Company or any subsidiary 
     thereof made in open market transactions shall be deemed a Pro Rata 
     Repurchase.  For purposes of this paragraph 9 G, shares shall be deemed to 
     have been purchased by the Company or any subsidiary thereof in open market 
     transactions if they have been purchased substantially in accordance with 
     the requirements of Rule 10b-18 as in effect under the Exchange Act, on the 
     date shares of Series A Preferred Stock are initially issued by the Company 
     or on such other terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the 
     Company or a committee thereof shall have determined are reasonably 
     designed to prevent such purchases from having a material effect on the 
     trading market for the Common Stock. 
 
     H.Whenever an adjustment to the Conversion Price and the related voting 
  rights of the Series A Preferred Stock is required pursuant to this 
  Resolution, the Company shall forthwith place on file with the transfer agent 
  for the Common Stock and the Series A Preferred Stock if there be one, and 
  with the Secretary of the Company, a statement signed by two officers of the 
  Company stating the adjusted Conversion Price determined as provided herein 
  and the resulting conversion ratio, and the voting rights (as appropriately 
  adjusted), of the Series A Preferred Stock.  Such statement shall set forth 
  in reasonable detail such facts as shall be necessary to show the reason and 
  the manner of computing such adjustment, including any determination of Fair 



 
  Market Value involved in such computation.  Promptly after each adjustment to 
  the Conversion Price and the related voting rights of the Series A Preferred 
  Stock, the Company shall mail a notice thereof and of the then prevailing 
  conversion ratio to each holder of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock. 
 
  SECTION 10. Ranking; Attributable Capital and Adequacy of Surplus; Retirement 
of Shares. 
 
     A.The Series A Preferred Stock shall rank senior to the Common Stock as to 
  the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets on liquidation, 
  dissolution and winding up of the affairs of the Company, and shall rank 
  junior to all series of preferred stock of the Company currently authorized 
  as to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets on liquidation, 
  dissolution or winding up and, unless otherwise provided in the Restated 
  Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended, or a Certificate of 
  Designation relating to a subsequent series of preferred stock of the 
  Company, the Series A Preferred Stock shall rank junior to all other series 
  of the Company's Preferred Stock, as to the payment of dividends and the 
  distribution of assets on liquidation, dissolution or winding up. 
 
     B.The capital of the Company allocable to the Series A Preferred Stock for 
  purposes of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the Corporation Law) shall 
  be $1.00 per share.  In addition to any vote of stockholders required by law, 
  the vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series A 
  Preferred Stock shall be required to increase the par value of the Common 
  Stock or otherwise increase the capital of the Company allocable to the 
  Common Stock for the purpose of the Corporation Law if, as a result thereof, 
  the surplus of the Company for purposes of the Corporation Law would be less 
  than the amount of preferred Dividends that would accrue on the then 
  outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock during the following three 
  years. 
 
     C.Any shares of Series A Preferred Stock acquired by the Company by reason 
  of the conversion or redemption of such shares as provided by the Resolution, 
  or otherwise so acquired, shall be retired as shares of Series A Preferred 
  Stock and restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares of 
  preferred stock of the Company, undesignated as to series, and may thereafter 
  be reissued as part of a new series of such preferred stock as permitted by 
  law. 
 
     SECTION 11.  Miscellaneous. 
 
     A.All notices referred to herein shall be in writing, and all notices 
  hereunder shall be deemed to have been given upon the earlier of receipt 
  thereof or three (3) business days after the mailing thereof if sent by 
  registered mail (unless first-class mail shall be specifically permitted for 
  such notice under the terms of this Resolution) with postage prepaid, 
  addressed: 
 
       (i)  if the Company, to its office at United Technologies Building, 
     Hartford Conn.  06101 (Attention: Secretary) or to the transfer agent for 
     the Series A Preferred Stock, or other agent of the Company designated as 
     permitted by this Resolution or 
 
       (ii) if to any holder of the Series A Preferred Stock or Common Stock, 
     as the case may be, to such holder at the address of such holder as listed 
     in the stock record books of the Company (which may include the records of 
     any transfer agent for the Series A Preferred Stock or Common Stock, as the 
     case may be) or 
 
       (iii)   to such other address as the Company or any such holder, as the 
     case may be, shall have designated by notice similarly given. 



 
 
     B.The term Common Stock as used in this Resolution means the Company's 
  Common Stock, par value $5.00 per share, as the same exists at the date of 
  filing of a Certificate of Designation relating to Series A Preferred Stock 
  or any other class of stock resulting from successive changes or 
  reclassifications of such Common Stock consisting solely of changes in par 
  value, or from par value to no par value, or from no par value to par value. 
  In the event that, at any time as a result of an adjustment made pursuant to 
  Section 9 of this Resolution, the holder of any share of the Series A 
  Preferred Stock upon thereafter surrendering such shares for conversion shall 
  become entitled to receive any shares or other securities of the Company 
  other than shares of Common Stock, the Conversion Price in respect of such 
  other shares or securities so receivable upon conversion of shares of Series 
  A Preferred Stock shall thereafter be adjusted, and shall be subject to 
  further adjustment from time to time, in a manner and on terms as nearly 
  equivalent as practicable to the provisions with respect to Common Stock 
  contained in Section 9 hereof, and the provisions of Sections 1 through 8 and 
  10 and 11 of this Resolution with respect to the Common Stock shall apply on 
  like or similar terms to any such other shares or securities. 
 
     C.The Company shall pay any and all stock transfer and documentary stamp 
  taxes that may be payable in respect of any issuance or delivery of shares of 
  Series A Preferred Stock or shares of Common Stock or other securities issued 
  on account of Series A Preferred Stock pursuant hereto or certificates 
  representing such shares or securities.  The Company shall not, however, be 
  required to pay any such tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer 
  involved in the issuance or delivery of shares of Series A Preferred Stock or 
  Common Stock or other securities in a name other than that in which the 
  shares of Series A Preferred Stock with respect to which such shares or other 
  securities are issued or delivered were registered, or in respect of any 
  payment to any person with respect to any such shares or securities other 
  than a payment to the registered holder thereof, and shall not be  required 
  to make any such issuance, delivery or payment unless and until the person 
  otherwise entitled to such issuance, delivery or payment has paid to the 
  Company the amount of any such tax or has established, to the satisfaction of 
  the Company, that such tax has been paid or is not payable. 
 
     D.In the event that a holder of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall 
  not by written notice designate the name in which shares of Common Stock to 
  be issued upon conversion of such shares should be registered or to whom 
  payment upon redemption of shares of Series A Preferred Stock should be made 
  or the address to which the certificate or certificates representing such 
  shares, or such payment, should be sent, the Company shall be entitled to 
  register such shares, and make such payment, in the name of the holder of 
  such Series A Preferred Stock as shown on the records of the Company and to 
  send the certificate or certificates representing such shares, or such 
  payment, to the address of such holder shown on the records of the Company. 
 
     E.Unless otherwise provided in the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 
  as amended, of the Company, all payments in the form of dividends, 
  distributions on voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or 
  winding-up or otherwise made upon the shares of Series A Preferred Stock and 
  any other stock ranking on a parity with the Series A Preferred Stock with 
  respect to such dividend or distribution shall be made pro rata, so that 
  amounts paid per share on the Series A Preferred Stock and such other stock 
  shall in all cases bear to each other the same ratio that the required 
  dividends, distributions or payments, as the case may be, then payable per 
  share on the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock and such other stock bear 
  to each other. 
 
     F.The Company may appoint, and from time to time discharge and change, a 
  transfer agent or a registrar or both for the Series A Preferred Stock.  Upon 



 
  any such appointment or discharge of a transfer agent or registrar, the 
  Company shall send notice thereof by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to 
  each holder of record of Series A Preferred Stock. 
 
     FIFTH:  The minimum amount of capital with which the Corporation will 
  commence business is One Thousand Dollars. 
 
     SIXTH:  The Corporation is to have perpetual existence. 
 
     SEVENTH:  The private property of the stockholders shall not be subject to 
  the payment of corporate debts. 
 
     EIGHTH:  Subject to the provisions of the laws of the State of Delaware, 
  the following provisions are adopted for the management of the business and 
  for the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation, and for defining, limiting 
  and regulating the powers of the Corporation, the directors and the 
  stockholders: 
 
       (a)  The books of the Corporation may be kept outside the State of 
     Delaware at such place or places as may, from time to time, be designated 
     by the Board of Directors. 
 
       (b)  The business of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of 
     Directors; and the Board of Directors shall have power to exercise all the 
     powers of the Corporation, including (but without limiting the generality 
     hereof) the power to create mortgages upon the whole or any part of the 
     property of the Corporation, real or personal, without any action of or by 
     the stockholders, except as otherwise provided by statute or by the Bylaws. 
 
       (c)  The number of the directors shall be fixed by the Bylaws, subject 
     to alteration, from time to time, by amendment of the Bylaws either by the 
     Board of Directors or the stockholders.  An increase in the number of 
     directors shall be deemed to create vacancies in the Board, to be filled in 
     the manner provided in the Bylaws.  Any director or any officer elected or 
     appointed by the stockholders or by the Board of Directors may be removed 
     at any time, in such manner as shall be provided in the Bylaws. 
 
       (d)  The Board of Directors shall have power to make and alter Bylaws, 
     subject to such restrictions upon the exercise of such power as may be 
     imposed by the incorporators or the stockholders in any Bylaws adopted by 
     them from time to time. 
 
       (e)  The Board of Directors shall have power, in its discretion, to fix, 
     determine and vary, from time to time, the amount to be retained as surplus 
     and the amount or amounts to be set apart out of any of the funds of the 
     Corporation available for dividends as working capital or a reserve or 
     reserves for any proper purpose, and to abolish any such reserve in the 
     manner in which it was created. 
 
       (f)  The Board of Directors shall have power, in its discretion, from 
     time to time, to determine whether and to what extent and at what times and 
     places and under what conditions and regulations the books and accounts of 
     the Corporation, or any of them, other than the stock ledger, shall be open 
     to the inspection of stockholders; and no stockholder shall have any right 
     to inspect any account or book or document of the Corporation, except as 
     conferred by law or authorized by resolution of the directors or of the 
     stockholders. 
 
       (g)  Upon any sale, exchange or other disposal of the property and/or 
     assets of the Corporation, payment therefor may be made either to the 
     Corporation or directly to the stockholders in proportion to their 



 
     interests, upon the surrender of their respective stock certificates, or 
     otherwise, as the Board of Directors may determine. 
 
       (h)  At all elections of directors of the Corporation, each holder of 
     Common Stock shall be entitled to as many votes as shall equal the number 
     of his shares of such stock multiplied by the number of directors to be 
     elected by the holders of Common Stock, and he may cast all of such votes 
     for a single director or may distribute them among the number to be voted 
     for by the holders of the Common Stock, or any two or more of them as he 
     may see fit. 
 
       (i)  In case the Corporation shall enter into any contract or transact 
     any business with one or more of its directors, or with any firm of which 
     any director is a member, or with any corporation or association of which 
     any director is a stockholder, director or officer, such contract or 
     transaction shall not be invalidated or in any way affected by the fact 
     that such director has or may have an interest therein which is or might be 
     adverse to the interests of the Corporation, even though the vote of such 
     director might have been necessary to obligate the Corporation upon such 
     contract or transaction; provided, that the fact of such interest shall 
     have been disclosed to the other directors or the stockholders of the 
     Corporation, as the case may be, acting upon or with reference to such 
     contract or transaction. 
 
       (j)  Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed between this 
     Corporation and its creditors or any class of them and/or between this 
     Corporation and its stockholders or any class of them, any court of 
     equitable jurisdiction within the State of Delaware may, on the application 
     in a summary way of this Corporation or of any creditor or stockholder 
     thereof or on the application of any receiver or receivers appointed for 
     this Corporation under the provisions of Section 291 of Title 8 of the 
     Delaware Code or on the application of trustees in dissolution or of any 
     receiver or receivers appointed for this Corporation under the provisions 
     of Section 279 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code order a meeting of the 
     creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of 
     stockholders of this Corporation, as the case may be, to be summoned in 
     such manner as the said court directs.  If a majority in number 
     representing three-fourths in value of the creditors or class of creditors, 
     and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of this Corporation, as 
     the case may be, agree to any compromise or arrangement and to any 
     reorganization of this Corporation as consequence of such compromise or 
     arrangement, the said compromise or arrangement and the said reorganization 
     shall, if sanctioned by the court to which the said application has been 
     made, be binding on all the creditors or class of creditors, and/or on all 
     the stockholders or class of stockholders, of this Corporation, as the case 
     may be, and also on this Corporation. 
 
       (k)  The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change, add to 
     or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of Incorporation in 
     the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute; and all rights herein 
     conferred are granted subject to this reservation. 
 
     NINTH:  The stockholder vote required to approve Business Combinations 
  (hereinafter defined) shall be as set forth in this Article Ninth. 
 
     SECTION 1. Higher Vote for Business Combinations.  In addition 
  to any affirmative vote required by law or this Certificate of Incorporation, 
  and except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 3 of this Article 
  Ninth: 
 
       A. any merger or consolidation of the Corporation or any Subsidiary (as 
     hereinafter defined) with (i) any Interested Stockholder (as hereinafter 



 
     defined) or (ii) any other corporation (whether or not itself an Interested 
     Stockholder) which is, or after such merger or consolidation would be, an 
     Affiliate (as hereinafter defined) of an Interested Stockholder; or 
 
       B. any sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, transfer or other 
     disposition (in one transaction or a series of transactions) to or with any 
     Interested Stockholder or any Affiliate of any Interested Stockholder of 
     any assets of the Corporation or any Subsidiary having an aggregate Fair 
     Market Value of $25,000,000 or more; or 
 
       C. the issuance or transfer by the Corporation or any subsidiary (in one 
     transaction or a series of transactions) of any securities of the 
     Corporation or any Subsidiary to any Interested Stockholder or any 
     Affiliate of any Interested Stockholder in exchange for cash, securities or 
     other property (or a combination thereof) having an aggregate Fair Market 
     Value of $25,000,000 or more; or 
 
       D. the adoption of any plan or proposal for the liquidation or 
     dissolution of the Corporation proposed by or on behalf of an Interested 
     Stockholder or any Affiliate of any Interested Stockholder; or 
 
       E.  any reclassification of securities (including any reverse stock 
     split), or recapitalization of the Corporation, or any merger or 
     consolidation of the Corporation with any of its Subsidiaries or any other 
     transaction (whether or not with or into or otherwise involving an 
     Interested Stockholder) which has the effect, directly or indirectly, of 
     increasing the proportionate share of the outstanding shares of any class 
     of equity or convertible securities of the Corporation or any Subsidiary 
     which is directly or indirectly owned by any Interested Stockholder or any 
     Affiliate of any Interested Stockholder; 
 
  shall require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the 
  voting power of the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the 
  Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the 
  Voting Stock), voting together as a single class (it being understood that 
  for purposes of this Article Ninth, each share of the Voting Stock shall have 
  the number of votes granted to it pursuant to Article Fourth of this 
  Certificate of Incorporation).  Such affirmative vote shall be required 
  notwithstanding the fact that no vote may be required, or that a lesser 
  percentage may be specified, by law or in any agreement with any national 
  securities exchange or otherwise. 
 
     SECTION 2. Definition of Business Combination.  The term Business 
  Combination as used in this Article Ninth shall mean any transaction which is 
  referred to in any one or more of paragraphs A through E of Section 1. 
 
     SECTION 3. When Higher Vote is Not Required.  The provisions of 
  Section 1 of this Article Ninth shall not be applicable to any particular 
  Business Combination, and such Business Combination shall require only such 
  affirmative vote as is required by law and any other provision of this 
  Certificate of Incorporation, if in the case of a Business Combination that 
  does not involve any cash or other consideration being received by the 
  stockholders of the Corporation, solely in their capacities as stockholders, 
  the condition specified in the following paragraph A is met, or if in the 
  case of any other Business Combination, the conditions specified in either of 
  the following paragraphs A or B are met: 
 
       A. Approval by Disinterested Directors.  The Business Combination shall 
     have been approved by a majority of the Disinterested Directors (as 
     hereinafter defined). 



 
       B. Price and Procedure Requirements.  All of the following conditions 
     shall have been met: 
 
   (i)    The aggregate amount of the cash and the Fair Market Value (as 
       hereinafter defined) as of the date of the consummation of the Business 
       Combination (the Consummation Date) of the consideration other than cash 
       to be received per share by holders of Common Stock in such Business 
       Combination shall be an amount at least equal to the higher of the 
       following (it being intended that the requirements of this paragraph 
       B(i) shall be required to be met with respect to all shares of Common 
       Stock outstanding, whether or not the Interested Stockholder has 
       previously acquired any shares of the Common Stock): 
 
     (a) the highest per share price (including any brokerage 
   commissions, transfer taxes and soliciting dealers' fees) paid by the 
   Interested Stockholder for any shares of Common Stock acquired by it 
   (1) within the two-year period immediately prior to the first public 
   announcement of the proposal of the Business Combination (the 
   Announcement Date) or (2) in the transaction in which it became an 
   Interested Stockholder, whichever is higher, plus interest compounded 
   annually from the date on which the Interested Stockholder became an 
   Interested Stockholder through the Consummation Date at the prime rate 
   of interest of Citibank, N.A. (or other major bank headquartered in 
   New York City selected by a majority of the Disinterested Directors) 
   from time to time in effect in New York City, less the aggregate 
   amount of any cash dividends paid, and the Fair Market Value of any 
   dividends paid in other than cash, per share of Common Stock from the 
   date on which the Interested Stockholder became an Interested 
   Stockholder through the Consummation Date in an amount up to but not 
   exceeding the amount of such interest payable per share of Common 
   Stock; or 
 
     (b) the Fair Market Value per share of Common Stock on the 
   Announcement Date. 
 
   (ii) The aggregate amount of the cash and the Fair Market Value as of 
       the Consummation Date of the consideration other than cash to be 
       received per share by holders of shares of any class of outstanding 
       Voting Stock, other than the Common Stock, in such Business Combination 
       shall be an amount at least equal to the highest of the following (it 
       being intended that the requirements of this paragraph B (ii) shall be 
       required to be met with respect to all shares of every such other class 
       of outstanding Voting Stock, whether or not the Interested Stockholder 
       has previously acquired any shares of a particular class of Voting 
       Stock): 
 
     (a) the highest per share price (including any brokerage 
   commissions, transfer taxes and soliciting dealers' fees) paid by the 
   Interested Stockholder for any shares of such class of Voting Stock 
   acquired by it (1) within the two-year period immediately prior to the 
   Announcement Date or (2) in the transaction in which it became an 
   Interested Stockholder, whichever is higher, plus interest compounded 
   annually from the date on which the Interested Stockholder became an 
   Interested Stockholder through the Consummation Date at the prime rate 
   of interest of Citibank, N.A. (or other major bank headquartered in 
   New York City selected by a majority of the Disinterested Directors) 
   from time to time in effect in New York City, less the aggregate 
   amount of any cash dividends paid, and the Fair Market Value of any 
   dividends paid in other than cash, per share of such class of Voting 
   Stock from the date on which the Interested Stockholder became an 
   Interested Stockholder through the Consummation Date in an amount up 



 
   to but not exceeding the amount of such interest payable per share of 
   such class of Voting Stock; 
 
     (b) the Fair Market Value per share of such class of Voting Stock 
   on the Announcement Date; or 
 
     (c) the highest preferential amount per share to which the holders 
   of shares of such class of Voting Stock are entitled in the event of 
   any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of 
   the Corporation. 
 
   (iii) The consideration to be received by holders of a particular 
       class of outstanding Voting Stock (including Common Stock) shall be in 
       cash or in the same form as the Interested Stockholder has previously 
       paid for shares of such class of Voting Stock.  If the Interested 
       Stockholder has paid for shares of any class of Voting Stock with 
       varying forms of consideration, the form of consideration for such class 
       of Voting Stock shall be either cash or the form used to acquire the 
       largest number of shares of such class of Voting Stock previously 
       acquired by it. 
 
   (iv) After such Interested Stockholder has become an Interested 
       Stockholder and prior to the consummation of such Business Combination: 
       (a) except as approved by a majority of the Disinterested Directors, 
       there shall have been no failure to declare and pay at the regular date 
       therefor any full quarterly dividends (whether or not cumulative) on the 
       outstanding Preferred Stock; (b) there shall have been (1) no reduction 
       in the annual rate of dividends paid on the Common Stock (except as 
       necessary to reflect any subdivision of the Common Stock), except as 
       approved by a majority of the Disinterested Directors, and (2) an 
       increase in such annual rate of dividends as necessary to reflect any 
       reclassification (including any reverse stock split), recapitalization, 
       reorganization or any similar transaction which has the effect of 
       reducing the number of outstanding shares of the Common Stock, unless 
       the failure so to increase such annual rate is approved by a majority of 
       the Disinterested Directors; and (c) such Interested Stockholder shall 
       have not become the beneficial owner of any additional shares of Voting 
       Stock except as part of the transaction which results in such Interested 
       Stockholder becoming an Interested Stockholder. 
 
   (v)  After such Interested Stockholder has become an Interested 
       Stockholder, such Interested Stockholder shall not have received the 
       benefit, directly or indirectly (except proportionately as a 
       stockholder), of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other 
       financial assistance or any tax credits or other tax advantages provided 
       by the Corporation. 
 
   (vi) A proxy or information statement describing the proposed Business 
       Combination and complying with the requirements of the Securities 
       Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and regulations thereunder (or any 
       subsequent provisions replacing such Act, rules or regulations) shall be 
       mailed to public stockholders of the Corporation at least 30 days prior 
       to the consummation of such Business Combination (whether or not such 
       proxy or information statement is required to be mailed pursuant to such 
       Act or subsequent provisions). 
 
  SECTION 4.   Certain Definitions.  For the purposes of this Article Ninth: 
 
     A. A person shall mean any individual, firm, corporation or other entity. 
 
     B. Interested Stockholder shall mean any person (other than the Corporation 
  or any Subsidiary) who or which: 



 
 
       (i)  is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 10% 
     of the voting power of the outstanding Voting Stock; or 
 
       (ii) is an Affiliate of the Corporation and at any time within the two- 
     year period immediately prior to the date in question was the beneficial 
     owner, directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of the voting power of the 
     then outstanding Voting Stock; or 
 
       (iii)   is an assignee of or has otherwise succeeded to any shares of 
     Voting Stock which were at any time within the two-year period immediately 
     prior to the date in question beneficially owned by any Interested 
     Stockholder, if such assignment or succession shall have occurred in the 
     course of a transaction or series of transactions not involving a public 
     offering within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933. 
 
     C. A person shall be a beneficial owner of any Voting Stock: 
 
       (i)  which such person or any of its Affiliates or Associates (as 
     hereinafter defined) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly; or 



 
       (ii) which such person or any of its Affiliates or Associates has (a) 
     the right to acquire (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only 
     after the passage of time), pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or 
     understanding or upon the exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, 
     warrants or options, or otherwise, or (b) the right to vote pursuant to any 
     agreement, arrangement or understanding; or 
 
       (iii) which are beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by any other 
     person with which such person or any of its Affiliates or Associates has 
     any agreement, arrangement or understanding for the purpose of acquiring, 
     holding, voting or disposing of any shares of Voting Stock. 
 
     D. For the purposes of determining whether a person is an Interested 
  Stockholder pursuant to paragraph B of this Section 4, the number of shares 
  of Voting Stock deemed to be outstanding shall include shares deemed owned 
  through application of paragraph C of this Section 4 but shall not include 
  any other shares of Voting Stock which may be issuable pursuant to any 
  agreement, arrangement or understanding, or upon exercise of conversion 
  rights, warrants or options, or otherwise. 
 
     E. Affiliate or Associate shall have the respective meanings ascribed to 
  such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations under the 
  Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as in effect on January 1, 1983. 
 
     F. Subsidiary means any corporation of which a majority of any class of 
  equity security is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Corporation; 
  provided, however, that for the purposes of the definition of Interested 
  Stockholder set forth in paragraph B of this Section 4, the term Subsidiary 
  shall mean only a corporation of which a majority of each class of equity 
  security is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Corporation. 
 
     G. Disinterested Director means any member of the Board of Directors of the 
  Corporation (the Board) who is unaffiliated with the Interested Stockholder 
  and was a member of the Board prior to the time that the Interested 
  Stockholder became an Interested Stockholder, and any successor of a 
  Disinterested Director who is unaffiliated with the Interested Stockholder 
  and is recommended to succeed a Disinterested Director by a majority of 
  Disinterested Directors then on the Board. 
 
     H. Fair Market Value means:  (i) in the case of stock, the highest closing 
  sale price during the 30-day period immediately preceding the date in 
  question of a share of such stock on the Composite Tape for New York Stock 
  Exchange-Listed Stocks, or, if such stock is not quoted on the Composite 
  Tape, on the New York Stock Exchange, or, if such stock is not listed on such 
  Exchange, on the principal United States securities exchange registered under 
  the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on which such stock is listed, or, if 
  such stock is not listed on any such exchange, the highest closing bid 
  quotation with respect to a share of such stock during the 30-day period 
  preceding the date in question on the National Association of Securities 
  Dealers, Inc., Automated Quotations System or any system then in use, or if 
  no such quotations are available, the fair market value on the date in 
  question of a share of such stock as determined by a majority of the 
  Disinterested Directors in good faith; and (ii) in the case of property other 
  than cash or stock, the fair market value of such property on the date in 
  question as determined by a majority of the Disinterested Directors in good 
  faith. 
 
     I. In the event of any Business Combination in which the Corporation 
  survives, the phrase consideration other than cash to be received as used in 
  paragraph B(i) and (ii) of Section 3 of this Article Ninth shall include the 
  shares of Common Stock and/or the shares of any other class of outstanding 
  Voting Stock retained by the holders of such shares. 



 
 
  SECTION 5. Powers of Disinterested Directors. A majority of the 
Disinterested Directors of the Corporation shall have the power and duty to 
determine, on the basis of information known to them after reasonable inquiry, 
all facts necessary to determine compliance with this Article Ninth, including 
without limitation (A) whether a person is an Interested Stockholder, (B) the 
number of shares of Voting Stock beneficially owned by any person, (C) whether a 
person is an Affiliate or Associate of another, (D) whether the requirements of 
paragraph B of Section 3 have been met with respect to any Business Combination, 
and (E) whether the assets which are the subject of any Business Combination 
have, or the consideration to be received for the issuance or transfer of 
securities by the Corporation or any Subsidiary in any Business Combination has, 
an aggregate Fair Market Value of $25,000,000 or more; and the good faith 
determination of a majority of the Disinterested Directors on such matters shall 
be conclusive and binding for all the purposes of this Article Ninth. 
 
  SECTION 6. No effect on Fiduciary Obligations of Interested Stockholders. 
Nothing contained in this Article Ninth shall be construed to relieve the Board 
of Directors or any Interested Stockholder from any fiduciary obligation imposed 
by law. 
 
  SECTION 7. Amendment, Repeal, etc.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of 
this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation (and 
notwithstanding the fact that a lesser percentage may be specified by law, this 
Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation), the affirmative 
vote of the holders of 80% or more of the voting power of the shares of the then 
outstanding Voting Stock, voting together as a single class, shall be required 
to amend or repeal, or adopt any provisions inconsistent with, this Article 
Ninth of this Certificate of Incorporation; provided, however, that the 
preceding provisions of this Section 7 shall not be applicable to any amendment 
to this Article Ninth of this Certificate of Incorporation, and such amendment 
shall require only such affirmative vote as is required by law and any other 
provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation, if such amendment shall have 
been approved by a majority of the Disinterested Directors. 
 
  TENTH: A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the 
Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary 
duty as a director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the director's 
duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or 
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing 
violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation 
Law for payment of unlawful dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or 
redemption, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an 
improper personal benefit. 



 
  I, WILLIAM H. TRACHSEL, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 
of the aforesaid Corporation, hereby certify that the foregoing Restated 
Certificate of Incorporation of the said Corporation was duly proposed by the 
Board of Directors and adopted by the Stockholders of the Corporation, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 245 of the General Corporation Law of 
the State of Delaware. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation under the seal of the aforesaid Corporation, duly attested, this 
19th day of June 2000. 
 
 
 
     /s/  WILLIAM H. TRACHSEL 
          William H. Trachsel 
          Senior Vice President, General Counsel 
          and Secretary 
 
 
 
Attest:       [CORPORATE SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
/s/  CHARLES F. HILDEBRAND 
     Charles F. Hildebrand 
     Assistant Secretary 



 
 
 
State of Connecticut 
    SS:  Hartford 
County of Hartford 
 
 
  BE IT REMEMBERED that on this 19th day of June 2000, personally came before 
me, a notary public in and for the said State and County, WILLIAM H. TRACHSEL, 
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of UNITED TECHNOLOGIES 
CORPORATION, a Corporation of the State of Delaware and the Corporation 
described in the foregoing Restated Certificate of Incorporation, known to me 
personally to be such Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, and 
he duly executed the said Restated Certificate of Incorporation before me and 
acknowledged the said Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be his act and 
deed and the act and deed of the said Corporation and the facts stated therein 
are true; and that the seal affixed to the said Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation and attested by the Assistant Secretary of the said Corporation is 
the common or corporate seal of the said Corporation. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal of office the day 
and year as aforesaid. 
 
 
 
 
       /s/  PATRICIA J. NOLAN 
       Patricia J. Nolan 
       Notary Public 
       My Commission Expires November 30, 2004 
 
 
       [NOTARY SEAL] 
 



                                                        Exhibit 10.3.A.1 
 
 
   UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
    Board of Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan 
 
      Amendment 1 
 
Whereas, the United Technologies Corporation Board of Directors Deferred Stock 
Unit Plan (the "Plan") was adopted effective January 1, 1996; and 
 
Whereas, the Board of Directors has approved an amendment to the Plan that will 
provide each participant with the opportunity to elect to receive 60% or 100% of 
Directors' Fees in the form of stock option awards in lieu of deferred stock 
units and/or cash, effective for Directors Fees payable in respect of 2001; 
 
Now therefore, the Plan is hereby amended, effective April 28, 2000, as follows: 
 
1. Article 2 is amended by adding the following definition: 
 
  Stock Option shall mean an option to acquire shares of UTC Common Stock under 
  the United Technologies Corporation Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan. 
 
2. Article 3 is amended by adding the following section: 
 
   3.04 Stock Options In Lieu Of Stock Units 
   A Participant may elect, with respect to each Plan Year, to receive an award 
   of Stock Options in lieu of the Stock Units provided for in Section 3.02. 
   Each Participant may therefore, beginning with Directors Fees payable in 
   respect of 2001, elect to receive 60% or 100% of Directors Fees in 
   the form of Options.  The value of the number of Stock Options granted will 
   equal the amount of Directors Fees converted to Stock Options. Value will be 
   calculated on the basis of the Black Scholes valuation model, utilizing the 
   same assumptions then currently employed by the Company with respect to its 
   other Stock Option programs.  Stock Options awarded hereunder shall have a 
   grant date as of the first business day of each calendar year.  Stock 
   Options shall be administered under and subject to the terms and conditions 
   of the United Technologies Corporation Nonemployee Director Stock Option 
   Plan. 
 
    UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
 
 
    By: /s/ William L. Bucknall, Jr. 
        William L. Bucknall, Jr. 
        Sr. Vice President Human Resources 
        and Organization 
 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/ Richard M. Kaplan 
    Richard M. Kaplan 
Date:  July 25, 2000 
 
 



                                                       Exhibit 10.3.A.2 
 
     UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
  Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan 
 
        Amendment 1 
 
Whereas, the United Technologies Corporation Nonemployee Director Stock Option 
Plan (the "Plan") was adopted by the Corporation and approved by shareowners 
April 23, 1996 for the purpose of granting stock option awards to the 
nonemployee directors of the Corporation; and 
 
Whereas, Section V of the Plan provides that each nonemployee director will 
receive a grant of 1,000 options each year, which amount is subject to 
adjustment pursuant to Section 8 of the Plan as a result of stock splits and 
other transactions effecting the Corporation's Common Stock; and 
 
Whereas, as a result of a stock split on December 10,1996, the number of annual 
options granted has been increased to 2,000; and 
 
Whereas, the Board of Directors changed the basis for determining the number of 
stock options granted under the Plan, and, as a result of such change, the 
number of options granted annually will not increase to 4,000 per year by reason 
of the May 17, 1999 stock split; and 
 
Whereas, Directors Fees may now be paid, at the election of the director in 
stock options in lieu of deferred stock units and cash; 
 
Now therefore, the Plan is hereby amended effective April 28, 2000 as follows: 
 
1. Section 3 is amended and restated as follows: 
 
3. Stock Subject to the Plan 
   The total number of shares of common stock of the Corporation ("Common 
   Stock") for which stock options may be granted under the Plan in any year 
   shall be determined under Section 5 herein. 
 
2. Section 5 of the Plan is amended and restated as follows: 
 
5. Grant of Stock Options 
   (a) On the date of the Corporation's annual meeting of shareowners in each 
   year for so long that the Plan remains in effect (the "Grant Date"), each 
   nonemployee director who is elected as a director at such meeting, or who's 
   term of office shall continue after the date of such meeting, automatically 
   shall be granted options to purchase a number of shares of Common Stock (an 
   "Option").  The number of options so awarded shall be equal in value to 
   $70,000, as determined by the Black Scholes Valuation Model, utilizing the 
   same assumptions then employed by the Corporation for the valuation of stock 
   options under its other long-term incentive plans.  The valuation shall be 
   calculated immediately prior to the annual meeting on a date determined by 
   the Committee.  The number of Options to be granted annually shall no longer 
   be subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 8 of the Plan, provided however, 
   that once granted, Options shall continue to be adjusted automatically 
   without further action by the Committee or the Board in accordance with 
   Section 8 of the Plan to prevent the dilution or enlargement of the rights of 
   Participants. 
 
   (b) On the first business day of each calendar year, Options shall be granted 
   to nonemployee directors if and to the extent they have elected to convert 
   all or a portion of their annual directors fees to Options in accordance with 
   the United Technologies Corporation Board of Directors Deferred Stock Unit 
   Plan. 
 
    UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
 
    By: /s/William L. Bucknall, Jr. 
        William L. Bucknall, Jr. 
        Sr. Vice President Human Resources 
        and Organization 
 
ATTEST: 
 
/s/Richard M. Kaplan 
   Richard M. Kaplan 
   July 25, 2000 
 


